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GROUP FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Financial data

(expressed in HK$000)
Turnover
Gross profit
Profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company
Total borrowings
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

BIMA Staff costs
BRARRIEE AL Net asset attributable to owners
FREEGET) (ML) of the Company per share (HK$) (note /)

Bt = Financial ratios

BN R (M5t 2) Current ratio (note 2)

RENL KR (M2 3) Quick ratio (note 3)

BEL XMt 4) Gearing ratio (note 4)

B EE - Note:

I BRARA YN FIE L Net asset attributable
BN = BEA < BEf to owners of the
el FEREE EfEES O Company per share

L RBHE = RBAE + RBERE 2. Current ratio

3 EBHE = (RPBE-FE) - RPEE 3 Quick ratio

YN
4 BEHE = RERE - WEA 4 Gearing ratio
EibER

2010

698,083
20,201

96,065
1,046,320
1,659,103

32,469

65,308

0418

[1]
098
63%

Equity attributable
= toowners

of the Company

= Current assets

= Total borrowings

= (Current assets - Inventories) -

2011 2012
406,285 989,885
24,555 (20,471)
[1,472 26,598
1,326,948 1,836,702
[,724,024 1,783,907
96,540 73,994
52,882 95,177
0434 0.449
.42 1.33

[.01 1.01

77% 103%

Number of

~—  issued shares

at year end
=~ Current liabilities
Current liabilities

Equity attributable
+  toowners of the

Company

CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

Annual Report 2012
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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On behalf of the Board of Directors, the business performance of China
Energine Interational (Holdings) Limited (the “Company") and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 3| December 2012 is

summarized as follows.

RESULTS SUMMARY

As of 31 December 2012, the Group's turnover for the year 2012 amounted
to HK$989.89 million with a profit for the year attributable to the Company's
owners of HK$26.60 million as compared to the turnover of HK$406.29
million with a profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$11.47 million for the year 2011 respectively, representing an increase of
1449% in turnover and an increase of 132% in profit for the year. The turnover
for the year comprised sales of wind energy related products of HK$734.69
million, sales of electricity generated from wind farms of HK$29.43 million,
sales of rare-earth permanent-magnet motor products of HK$31.26 million,
sales of chemical materials of HK$166.79 million and sales of HK$27.71
million related to telecommunication business, whereas the turnover in 201 |
comprised sales of wind energy related products of HK$196.79 million, sales of
electricity generated from wind farms of HK$28.42 million, sales of rare-earth
permanent-magnet motor products of HK$28.95 million, sales of chemical
materials of HK$106.77 million and sales of HK$45.36 million related to
telecommunication business. The increase in turnover was mainly due to the
increase in sales of the Group's wind energy related products by HK$537.90
million, representing an increase of 273% year-on-year, with wind turbines sold
in 2012 increased by 143 sets of [.5MW wind turbines.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Business of Wind Energy

In 2012, the directdrive wind turbine developed by the Group with proprietary
intellectual property rights participated in fierce competition in the domestic
market which is currently a buyers’ market, and was highly recognized by wind
farm developers within the industry for its simple structure, high reliability, high
efficiency and low operation and maintenance costs. The Group continued
to give full play to the advantages of technology, quality and service of CASC
directdrive wind turbines. On this basis, the Group capitalised on its products’
leading edge and achieved cost control by adopting the strategy of technology
enhancement and batch production through research and development,
thereby achieving high supply chain performance and enhanced cost
effectiveness to proactively address challenges. Through Inner Mongolia Wind
Turbine General Assembling Plant, Gansu Wind Turbine General Assembling
Plant and Jiangsu Energine Wind Turbine General Assembling Plant, the Group
realized mass production of a number of self-developed models (especially
I.SMW excitation magnetic directdrive wind turbine, 2MW permanent-
magnet directdrive wind turbine and 2MW excitation magnetic directdrive
wind turbine), and adopted the strategy of establishing good relationship
with several provincial and autonomous regions” governments to gain their
supports and leveraging on provincial and autonomous regions” quotas for
wind energy to obtain more wind resources in seeking more production
orders for wind turbines, thereby increasing our market share. At present,
the Group has considerable wind energy resources in various major wind
power bases planned by the State, including Wulatehougi in Inner Mongolia,
Jiuquan City and Wuwei City in Gansu, Ningde City in Fujian, Chuxiong City in
Yunnan and Tieling City in Liaoning, laying a robust foundation for the Group's
batch production of wind turbines during the year, which in turn will bring in

promising income to the Group.

CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
Annual Report 2012
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Since the directdrive wind turbines are characterized by gearless drive, the
use of low-speed large-torque generators, full-power convertor and strong
resistance to grid voltage fluctuations, their advantages include low wear and
tear, high efficiency of electricity generation, small size, light weight, easy to
maintain and low operating cost when compared with the traditional wind
turbines. As such, the directdrive wind turbines, in particular, the |.5SMW and
2MW excitation magnetic directdrive wind turbines being launched mainly
by the Group from now onwards have visible optimism in the market. In
addition, the AC-DC-AC total inverter grid-connection technology employed
by directdrive wind turbines can meet the standards under the “Design
regulations for grid-connection technology of large-scale wind farms™ issued
by National Energy Administration in 2011, which provided a series of

requirements such as low-voltage ride-through, grid compatibility and power

test, bringing rare opportunities to the Group's wind turbine business.
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In 2012, the Group sold a total of 16 sets of 2MW wind turbine and 143 sets
of 1.5SMW wind turbine.

Meanwhile, the Group also successfully entered into sales contracts for
240,000 KW 2MW excitation magnetic directdrive wind turbine (120 sets)
which will be delivered in 2013, including the sales contract for 200,000 KW
2MW excitation magnetic wind turbines in Yumen City, Gansu, with Huadian
New Energy and the sales contract for 40,000 KW 2MW excitation magnetic
wind turbines in Xiapu City, Fujian, with Energine Min Jian.
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Research and Development of Technology

During the first half of 2012, the
Group has identified [.5MW
and 2MW excitation magnetic
directdrive wind turbines as its
flagship products in the future.
Based on wind farm conditions
such as wind speed, air density
and altitude, we researched and
developed |.5MW excitation
magnetic directdrive wind turbines
with wind wheel diameters of
77, 83 and 88 meters and 2MW
excitation magnetic directdrive
wind turbines with wind wheel
diameters of 90, 93, 97 and 101

meters.

In September 201 |, the Group established a science and technology
committee, which formed a research and development project team on
2MW excitation magnetic directdrive wind turbines to undertake the special
research on intellectual property of 2MW excitation magnetic directdrive wind
turbines. The Group has applied for 4 patents for invention and 7 patents for
utility model and registered 5 softwares in relation to wind energy in 2012.
One of the invention patents was recognized as an outstanding invention by
the China Academy of Launch Vehicle Technology (“CALT"). We completed
the installation of the prototype of 2MW excitation magnetic directdrive
wind turbine in June 2012, which is currently in good operating condition at
full capacity. In 2013, a project on the research and development of 3MW
permanent-magnet directdrive wind turbine is being

pursued.

CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
Annual Report 2012
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Production Management

In 2012, during the process of batch production of 1.5MW excitation magnetic
and 2MW permanent magnetic directdrive wind turbines, the management
system and business process suitable for batch production were further
improved. The Group has clearly clarified the driving department for the
management of scientific research and production with enhanced management
planning. Through special project plan and deployment manoeuvring,
orderly batch production of wind turbines was ensured under the guidance
of the plans. The management procedure was reorganized with clear-
cut definition of responsibilities and duties between different departments.
Thus we can achieve efficient operation of personnel movement, logistics,
cash flows and information flows in the various processes of sales, planning,

design, production, purchasing and finance, as well as effective closed-loop

management and control.

10 TEMABRER(EE) ARAF
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In 2012, the Group's focus of production management was on the
strengthening of quality assurance management. The Group improved all
aspects of quality control according to the characteristics of directdrive wind
turbines and formulated the Procedures for the Treatment of Parts and
Components with Quality Issues, Procedures for the Treatment of Wind
Farm Quality Issues and Procedures for the Treatment of Plant Quality Issues.
Also, the Group established the Quality Tracking System for the Installation
of Wind Turbines which needed measures to be taken to follow up and
confirm the effects in a timely manner. Furthermore, the Group organized
quality engineers to prepare the quality control requirements for parts and
components according to the degree of importance and the level of risk of
various parts and components, and specified the quality requirements for,
among others, the manufacturing, testing, inspection, packaging and delivery
of parts and components, based on the national standards and technical
specifications. In addition, the Group included the quality requirements for
parts and components in contracts, which resulted in the advancement of
quality control and the increased emphasis on product quality by suppliers,
hence product quality was effectively improved, quality disputes were reduced
and product quality risk was lowered. The Group successively completed the
preparation of the quality control requirements for key parts and components
of the [.5MW excitation magnetic wind turbines, 2MW permanent magnetic
wind turbines and 2MW excitation magnetic wind turbines, and established a
team of quality engineers in order to enhance the detection capacities for the
parts and components through purchase of the detection equipment, providing
scientific basis for the evaluation of quality of large parts and components for
acceptance such as the nacelle, hub and tower of wind turbines and ensured
the quality of the wind turbine assembling.

CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
Annual Report 2012
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The Group focused its efforts on the strengthening of the safety check and
risk management. The Group implemented the comprehensive supervision
and inspection on subsidiaries and investigated 29 potential safety risks, carried
out the monthly safety self-inspection activities and thoroughly investigated
the potential safety risks down-to-the-ground with “zero tolerance”, organized
the staff to study the safety risks at various posts, proper preventive measures
and emergency treatment measures, and carried out drills on the fire safety
emergency plan in the Inner Mongolia Industrial Park which effectively
improved the emergency treatment capacities of the front-line staff. Safety
slogans and logos were posted, and various safety promotion materials were
distributed at public places, staff dormitory and production workshops of
each plant zone of subsidiaries. Experienced safety officers were hired to
give safety training lectures. Safety knowledge tests were carried out on
all middle-level executives of the Group and all the staff were educated
on safety during festival days. Subsidiaries under the Group had signed
production safety notifications with all of their staff, which not only enhanced
the safety awareness of the staff, but also further refined the production

safety management in detail and ensured that no material accidents occurred

throughout the year.

Trading of Materials

In 2012, BEI continued the trading business of chemical raw materials in
connection with production of wind turbine blades and recorded a significant

increase.
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Wind Farm Operations

The Group's wind farm operations comprise a wind farm controlled and
operated by the Group: the CASC Long Yuan (Benxi) wind farm of Liaoning
Benxi, installed with 29 sets of 850KW wind turbines with a capacity of
24,650KWV; three wind farms invested and constructed by the Group: the
Jilin Tongyu wind farm of Jilin Longyuan, installed with 236 sets of 850KW
wind turbines with a capacity of 200,000KW; the Jiangsu Rudong wind farm
of Jiangsu Longyuan, installed with 100 sets of [.5SMW wind turbines with a
capacity of 150,000KW and the Datang Wanyuan Xinghe wind farm of Inner
Mongolia Xinghe, installed with 55 sets of 900KW directdrive wind turbines
with a capacity of 49,500KW.

In addition, Energine Min Jian New Energy Investment Co., Ltd, the Group's
associated company, formally engaging in offshore and land wind power
projects in eastern Fujian through its subsidiary, Yingkou Wind Power
Generation Co,, Ltd, secured market orders for the Group for the purchase of
2MW directdrive wind turbine models produced by the Group.

CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
Annual Report 2012
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Business of New Materials

Jiangsu Aerospace Wan Yuan REPM Motor Co,, Ltd,, controlled and operated
by the Group, is a high-tech enterprise which specializes in the research
and development, manufacture, and sales of rare-earth permanent-magnet
gearless traction machines for elevators. The "l A& IR branded rare-earth
permanent-magnet gearless traction machines and its driving control system
researched and developed by the company itself had filled the technological

gap of the domestic gearless elevator sector.

Wouxi CASC Energine Xindali Electricity Co., Ltd. (“Wuxi Generator Plant™),
the Group's associated company, is engaged in batch production of 900KW
and |.5MW generators. Its self-developed |.5MW excitation magnetic
directdrive wind power generator, with application of many new technologies,
was awarded the First Prize of Outstanding Contribution to Science and
Technology Progress in 2011 by CALT. Therefore, the Group is equipped
with the internal capacity to supply core parts and components of wind
turbines, including blades and generators, thereby reducing its reliance on
upstream suppliers of the wind turbine supply chain for purchasing generators
and controlling the supply risk of the wind turbine supply chain and production

cost.

14 TEMABRER(EE) ARAF
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Business of Automotive Component Parts
Automotive engine management systems

Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine Management Systems Co., Ltd, a jointly
controlled entity, is a leading supplier in the domestic automotive electronic
fuel injection market with a stable market share, ranking the second nationwide
and supplies to almost all major domestic automobile manufacturers. As for
export sales, its products are sold to automobile manufacturers in Europe and
North America.

The jointly controlled entity recorded sales revenue of HK$3,351.56 million
in 2012, representing an increase of HK$302.| | million year-on-year. Its sales

expansion and costs reduction were successfully achieved.

Automotive sealing systems

Beijing Wanyuan-Henniges Sealing Systems Co,, Ltd., a jointly controlled entity,
is a company specializing in manufacturing of medium-to-high class automotive
sealing products in the domestic market. lts quality control standards are on
par with the international advanced level. The jointly controlled entity not
only realized the development and ancillary items to the medium-to-high
class models in the domestic market, but also attained the system standards
applicable to Germany, France, United States, Japan and South Korea with its

products.

CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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The jointly controlled entity recorded sales revenue of HK$763.48 million in

2012, representing an increase of HK$186.24 million year-on-year.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

The Group always lives up to its corporate culture: we have been devoted to
projects on new energy, energy conservation and environmental protection
in the areas of renewable power generation and carbon emission control in
adhering to the principles of protecting the Earth and ecological environment
insistently and our mission of contributing to society and benefiting mankind.
Relentless efforts have been made to pursue excellence in quality in research
and development and production of wind turbines so as to strengthen the
CASC brand and earn customers' trust. In the aspect of management, risk
management and compliance system were strengthened to ensure sustainable
development. Employees' talents were fully utilized with a win-win strategy
for harmony to nurture an outstanding corporate team in the course of fully

fulfilling our social responsibilities.
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The Hong Kong Stock Exchange made changes to the Corporate Governance
Code set out in the Listing Rules in 2012. The principal aim of the amendments
was to encourage better accountability of listed companies and directors,
including the improvement in transparency by bolstering requirements for
disclosure and communication with shareholders; enhancing the quality of
directors and company secretary by imposing training requirements; increasing
the influence of independent non-executive directors in committees under
the board of listed companies; recognizing the effect of company secretary in
corporate governance and defining his roles and responsibilities; and placing
emphasis on the leadership role of the chairman of the board in corporate
governance matters. The Company's Code on Corporate Governance was
amended accordingly and relevant system was implemented as scheduled.
Through enhancing the supervisory power of independent non-executive
directors on corporate governance matters, establishing and strengthening
the responsibilities and powers of the company secretary and the internal
audit team in compliance with the new requirements under the Listing Rules,
a higher standard of corporate governance was established. In January 2013,
the original price sensitive information policy and procedure was amended
as inside information policy and procedure for compliance with the revised
Securities and Futures Ordinance and the corresponding amendments in the

Listing Rules.

In 2012, the establishment of a professional team system was bolstered; the
Group organized 43 training sessions with employee participation of more than
300 persons and more than 1,500 training hours in total, training expenses
amounted to approximately RMB460,000. The purpose was to strengthen
and improve the management of the Group’s managerial personnel, enhance
management in a scientific, systematic and regularized manner, in order to
develop a high-quality professional team. The Group also formed the “Home
for Eligible staff’ to provide assistance to those staff in difficulties, delivered

integrity education and strengthened the anti-corruption ethics system.
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PROSPECTS

Research and development on graphene technology

In May 2012, the Company entered into agreements on joint research and
development with various international and domestic renowned colleges,
institutions and corporations in an effort to realize batch production of high-
quality graphene and high-performance energy storage battery pack leveraging
on their proprietary graphene extraction technology. Graphene, a kind of new
material with singular flake structure composed of carbon atoms, is one of
the best conductive materials in the world. The anode material of lithium ion
battery made by graphene is able to significantly increase the energy storage
capacity and shorten charging time of the battery, thus effectively resolving
the bottleneck problem of applying lead-acid battery and traditional lithium
ion battery to electric vehicles. The energy storage device of graphene is
characterized by extra-long recycling life and high current during the process
of charging and discharging, therefore there is huge market room of graphene-
based new battery anode material and super capacitor under the research and
development. Currently, the above research work has achieved certain stage
results, and industrial production of the establishing project will commence

after substantive results have been achieved later this year.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to improve the progress in domestic
production of wind turbines, focus on the development of 3MW and 5SMW
wind turbines in line with the Twelfth Five-year Plan to capture the future
market share of wind turbines and increase cooperation opportunities with
other large-scale power generation groups, refine the batch production of
rare-earth motors and secure financing for the Group. We will further expand
the scale of energy conservation and environmental protection business as well
as strengthen our internal management to ensure the sustainable development
of the Group and create greater benefits for shareholders in wealth and good

reputation.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 3| December 2012, the Group had 33 employees (201 I: 35 employees)
in the Hong Kong head office and 674 employees (201 1: 463 employees)
in the Mainland China offices. Remuneration of employee is determined
according to individual employee’s performance and the prevailing trends in
different areas and reviewed on an annual basis. The Group also provides
Mandatory Provident Fund and medical insurance to its employees. In addition,

discretionary performance bonus is available at the discretion of the Directors.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Total borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2012 were
HK$1,836,702,000 (201 1: HK$1,326,948,000), of which HK$530,048,000
(2011 HK$454,548,000) was floating-rate borrowings and the remaining was
fixed-rate. All borrowings of the Group were determined at market interest
rate. The Group has not issued any financial instruments for hedging or other

purposes.

Gearing ratio (total borrowings over shareholders’ equity) as at 31 December
2012 was 103% (201 1: 77%).

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2012, certain assets of the Group of HK$24,947,000 (201 1:
HK$22,606,000) have been pledged to secure bank facility.

Exchange and Other Exposures

Most of the Group's business transactions were conducted in Renminbi. The
Group expected that the exposure to exchange rates fluctuation was not

significant and therefore has not engaged in any hedging activities.
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Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has issued guarantees to banks in
respect of banking facilities in the amount of HK$22,573,000 (201 1: nil)
and HK$24,665,000 (2011 nil) granted to a third party and an associate
respectively, of which HK$24,665,000 (201 I: nil) has been utilized.

APPRECIATION

I ' would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow directors and all
the staff members for their hard work and dedication during the year under

review.

By Order of the Board

Han Shuwang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2013
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Han Shuwang, aged 48, researcher, obtained his Bachelor degree
in Computer Science and Master degree in Economics and Management
from Tongji University and American Southwest University respectively. He
is a Visiting Professor of Tongji University and achieved the Space Award
from China Aerospace Science and Technology Corporation (“CASC"). He
served as Deputy Division Chief, Deputy Chief Designer, Director Assistant
and Deputy Director with the Institute of Space Automation Control of
China Academy of Launch Vehicle Technology (“CALT") between 1988 and
1997, Deputy Director of Political Division of CALT in 1997, Director of
Administrative Office of CALT in 1998, General Manager of Beijing Wan Yuan
Industry Corporation in 1999, and President Assistant of CALT in 2000. Since
2002, he has served as Vice President of CALT. In parallel, he has also been a
Director of Aisino Co,, Ltd. (“Aisino”), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange for November 2000 to April 201 1. Possessing rich experiences
in strategic research and business administration, he was appointed as an
Executive Director and Vice-Chairman of the Company on 14 February 2006
and became the Chairman on 26 October 2007. He is also a Director of a

number of subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Wang Xiaodong, aged 45, graduated from Beijing University of
Aeronautics and Astronautics with a Bachelor degree in Electronic Engineering
and obtained a MBA from the University of South Australia. During 1989 to
1998, he worked with Beijing Institute of Spacecraft System Engineering under
the China Academy of Space Technology (“CAST"), the Comprehensive
Planning Bureau of the Ministry of Aerospace Industry of China and then
the General Office of China Aerospace Corporation, as Assistant Engineer,
Engineer, Senior Engineer, and Secretary to the President cum Deputy Director
of the President’s Office. In 1999, he, possessing extensive experience in
research and management, was appointed the Executive Director cum Deputy
General Manager of China Aerospace International Holdings Limited. He has
been appointed as Managing Director (later becoming Executive Director cum
General Manager) of the Company since May 1999 and became the Vice-
Chairman and Executive Director of the Company on 26 August 2010. He is

also a Director of a number of subsidiaries of the Group.
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Mr. Li Guang, aged 50, senior engineer, graduated from Tianjin University
with a Master degree in Industrial Automation. He had been the Designer
with the [4th Institute of CALT between 1991 and 1996, Division Chief of
Development Division, and General Manager of Beijing Long March Hi-tech
Corporation from 1996 to 2005. He acted as Deputy General Manager, and
General Manager of Beijing Wan Yuan Industry Corporation successively
from 1998. Mr. Li exhibits excellent experience in scientific research, product
development and business administration. He was appointed as an Executive
Director and a Deputy General Manager of the Company on 14 February
2006. On 31 March 2009, Mr. Li resigned from Deputy General Manager and
was re-designated as Non-executive Director on | April 2009 following his
appointment as the Chief of Business and Investment Department of CALT.
In parallel, he has been a Director of Astrotech Group Ltd. (“Astrotech”), the
Company's controlling shareholder since 8 August 2010. Astrotech is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CALT. He was re-designated as Executive Director
and appointed as CEO on 6 March 2012. He has also been a Director of a

number of subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Zang Wei, aged 43, senior engineer, obtained his Bachelor's degree in
Engineering at the Telecommunication Engineering Faculty and his Master's
degree in Telecommunication and Electronic Engineering from Harbin
Institute of Technology. He also obtained a PhD in Economics from Renmin
University of China. Since he joined the China aerospace industry in 1992,
he has assumed the Deputy Director with the International Cooperation
Division of China Academy of Space Technology, the Deputy Director with
Assets Management Division, Trading and Investment Department of China
Aerospace Science & Technology Corporation (the Company's ultimate
controlling shareholder), the Director and CEO of China Spacesat Co.,
Ltd. (listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange), the Director and Senior Vice
President of China Spacesat Technology Co., Ltd. (listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange) successively. He possesses rich experience on management of listed
company in relation to assets operation and internationalization development.
He was appointed as a Vice President (formerly known as Deputy General
Manager) of the Company on 6 March 2007. He was appointed as Executive
Director and CEO of the Company on 26 August 2010. He retired therefrom
on 6 March 2012. He was also a Director of a number of subsidiaries of the

Group.
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Mr. Wang Lijun, aged 40. Mr. Wang Lijun graduated from Harbin Institute
of Technology with a Bachelor degree with major in Industrial Accounting
and National University of Defense Technology with a Master degree in
Management. He was qualified as an Accountant in PRC in May 1999. Prior to
joining the Company, he was the Chief Accountant with Beijing CASC Wan
Yuan Science & Technology Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of CALT.
He was appointed as Financial Controller of the Company on 10 May 2008.
He was appointed as Executive Director of the Company on 26 August 2010.

He is also a Director of a number of subsidiaries of the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fang Shili, aged 39, graduated from Peking University with a Bachelor
degree in Law and obtained a Master degree in Finance from Renmin
University of China. Since he joined CALT in 1995, he has served as Auditor,
Deputy Director with the Second Division in Audit Office, Director of
Consolidated Finance Division, Deputy Chief, Chief of the Finance Department
and Chief Accountant. He was qualified as a Lawyer and as a Certified
Accountant in 1997 and a registered Tax Agent in 2007 in PRC. In parallel, he
has been a Director of Astrotech since 8 August 2010. He was appointed as
Non-executive Director of the Company on 26 August 2010.

Ms. Zhang Jianhua, aged 52, registered consultant, graduated from Nankai
University with an Executive Master degree in Business Administration. She
had been the Officer Assistant, Officer and General Manager with the China
Aerospace Engineering Consultation Centre (“CAECC") successively during
2003 to 2007; the Deputy General Manager with Beijing Control Technology
Co. Ltd. under, and the Chief Engineer with the Business Investment and
Industry Development Department of, CAST. She has been the Deputy Chief
of Business and Investment Development of CALT since 2010, possessing rich
experience in engineering consultancy, market exploitation, project operation
and business management. Both CAECC and CAST are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of CASC.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Dechen, aged 73, graduated with a bachelor degree from
Harbin Institute of Military Technology (formerly Chinese People’s Liberation
Army Military Engineering Institute), was a committee member of the [0th
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Congress. He served as the Assistant
Director, Director, Deputy Dean, Vice President, Deputy Secretary to the
Party Committee of Nanjing Eastern China Engineering College between
1966 and 1985. He acted as Secretary of Education of the Ministry of China
Weapon Industry Ministry's National Mechanical Committee in 1985. He
served as Deputy General Manager of China North Industries Group in 1988
to 1990 and of China Weapon Industry Corp. in 1990 to 1996. He served
as General Manager and Secretary to the Party Secretary of China South
Industries Group Corp. from July 1999. From December 2003 onwards, he
acted as the Senior Consultant thereof. From July 2004 to December 2009,
he was an Independent Director of Aisino, a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. With rich experience in strategic management and corporate
restructuring, Mr. Wang is the senior expert in Chinese advanced equipment
manufacturing industry and automotive industry. Also, Mr. Wang is an active
advocate and experienced expert in China environmental protection and clean
energy field. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on

23 January 2008 and reappointed on 23 January 201 | for a tenure of 3 years.
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Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice, aged 58, is a fellow member of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, a fellow member of the CPA Australia
and an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA™). She is also a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. She has over |5 years of experience in corporate finance
and is well experienced in both the equity and debt markets. She held various
senior positions in international and local banks and financial institutions and
is currently a controlling shareholder and the Managing Director of each of
Asia Investment Management Limited and Asia Investment Research Limited,
both companies are licensed corporations under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO™). Ms. Kan is a licensed investment adviser under the
SFO and a registered officer of Lotus Asset Management Ltd. Ms. Kan is and
was also an Independent Non-executive Director of each of Regal Hotels
International Holdings Limited , G-Vision International (Holdings) Limited
("G-Vision"), Sunway International Holdings Limited (“Sunway"), Shimao
Property Holdings Limited, Shougang Concord International Enterprises
Company Limited, Shougang Concord Technology Holdings Limited (‘Shougang
Tech") and Sunac China Holdings Limited (“Sunac China"), all of which are
companies listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and AVIC International
Investments Ltd, a company listed on Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Ltd. She retired from those offices of Shougang Tech and G-Vision and Sunway
on 8 June 2010, I'l August 2011 and 28 February 2013 respectively and
resigned from that of Sunac China on 8 June 201 I. She was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 23 January 2008 and reappointed on

23 January 201 | for a tenure of 3 years.

Mr. Gordon Ng, aged 48, obtained his Bachelor's degree in Microbiology
and Biochemistry and Master's degree in Intellectual Property from University
of London. He was qualified as a solicitor in England and Wales in 1993 and
Hong Kong in 1994. He has been a partner of an international law firm advising
clients on corporate law and corporate finance law since May 2010. Prior
to that, he had been a partner of Sidley Austin Brown & Wood, Hong Kong
and CMS Cameron Mckenna, Hong Kong and Hogan & Hartson. He was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on 23 January 2008 and

reappointed on 23 January 201 | for a tenure of 3 years.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li You, aged 48, senior engineer. Graduated from Huazhong University
of Science and Technology with a bachelor degree in Electronic Material and
Component Specialized Technology, he has studied courses in economics,
banking, finance and business management of engineering management
research class in Beijing Institute of Technology. Since 1986, he successively
served in Beijing Telemetering Technical Research Institute, CALT's Political
Division, Administrative Office, Civilian Use Development Department as
Deputy Director, Comprehensive Management Director in which he was
engaged in special case development, technical division management, public
relation management, and civil assets integrative management work. In 2003,
he served as Deputy Chief of Investment Management Department in
CALT, responsible for CALT's civil assets planning management, corporate
management, capital restructuring, and management appraisal work. Having
possessed extensive experience in aerospace civil industry management,
he was appointed as a Vice President (formerly known as Deputy General
Manager) of the Company on |6 March 2007. He was appointed as Executive
Vice President of the Company on 26 August 2010. He is also a Director of a
number of subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Chen Wei Nong, aged 56, senior engineer, graduated from Zhejiang
University with a Bachelor's degree in Mechanical Manufacturing Processes and
Equipment. Since 1980, he successively served in Beijing Jian Hua Electronic
Instrument Factory of CALT as workshop craftsman, designer, Deputy Director
of Technology Division, Deputy Chief of Testing and Control Studio and
Deputy Factory Manager of the Factory. He served as Deputy Chief Engineer
of Yuan Wang Group from 1999 to 2003. From 2003 to 2010, he successively
served as General Manager Project Assistant, and Deputy General Manager
of Beijing Energine Co. Ltd. He has served as Chief Engineer of the Company
since June 2008. He was appointed as a Vice President of the Company on 26

August 2010. He is also a Director of a number of subsidiaries of the Group.
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Mr. Hu Wei Lin, aged 48, researcher, graduated from the School of
Mechanical Engineering of Shanghai Jiao Tong University with a bachelor
degree and from China Academy of Space Technology with a Master degree
in Spacecraft Design. Since 1991, he successively served in Beijing LM Hi-Tech
Development Corporation as Designer, Deputy Chief Engineer, Chief Engineer
and Deputy General Manager. In 2007, he was appointed as Deputy General
Manager cum Director of Wind Power Research and Development Centre of
Beijing Energine Industry Co. Ltd.. He has been appointed as General Manager
Project Assistant and the Director of Research on 900KW wind turbine of the
Company since February 2010. He was appointed as a Vice President of the
Company on 26 August 2010. He is also a Director of a number of subsidiaries

of the Group.

Mr. Zhang Wei Min, aged 46, researcher, graduated from Department of
Precision Instruments and Mechanology, Tsinghua University with a Bachelor's
degree. He successively served as Designer, and Deputy Manager in Civilian
Product Design House, as Deputy Factory Manager of Packaging Machinery
Factory, as Chief Engineer in Civilian Product Group of Capital Aerospace
Machinery Company from July 1988 to October 2001. During November
2001 to July 2003, he studied at the Research Centre for Intelligent Machines,
McGill University in Canada in obtaining a Master's degree of engineering. From
July 2003, he successively served as Deputy General Manager, and the Manager
of Wind Power Research and Development Department of Beijing Energine
Industry Co. Ltd.. He served as General Manager Project Assistant of the
Company from February 2010. He was appointed as a Vice President of the
Company on 26 August 2010. He is also a Director of a number of subsidiaries

of the Group.

Mr. Au-Yeung Keung, Steve. Mr. Au-Yeung graduated from The University
of Hong Kong with a Master of Science degree in Electronic Commerce and
Internet Computing, the City University of Hong Kong with a LLM degree
in Chinese and Comparative Law and the University of London with a LLB
degree with honours. He is a fellow member of both the Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants and HKICPA. He began his career in being an
auditing professional with an international accounting firm and had extensive
experience in accounting, auditing, financial management and company
secretarial practice in Hong Kong and PRC prior to joining the Company.
Mr. Au-Yeung was appointed as the Company Secretary and authorized
representative of the Company on | June 2006. He has also been the Head of

Internal Audit of the Group.
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This report describes the Company's corporate governance practices and
explains the application of the principles in the Corporate Governance Code
("the CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (“the Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“the Stock Exchange”) throughout the year ended 31 December
2012 and includes any significant subsequent events for the period up to the
date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The Company recognises that corporate governance practices are
fundamental to the smooth, effective and transparent operation of a company
and its ability to attract investment, protect the rights of shareholders and

enhance shareholder value.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all the code
provisions of the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2012
save the following.

All of the Non-executive Directors of the Company are not appointed for a
specific term, except that Independent Non-executive Directors are of a fixed
term of 3 years, but are subject to retirement and rotation and re-election
at the Company's Annual General Meeting (“AGM") in accordance with the
retirement provisions under the Articles of Association of the Company. The
Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken in this regard to
ensure that the Group's corporate governance practices are no less exacting
than those in the Code.
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EEE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

HE_E——F#+-_BA=+—HIEE &R The Board of Directors (“the Board") of the Company for the year ended

AlzEZe((EFe )R THESARMR 31 December 2012 comprises the following Directors :

WITES Executive Directors

B E(EFR) Mr. Han Shuwang (Chairman)

IRREE(HEER) Mr. Wang Xiaodong (Vice-Chairman)

BN (- FE——FE=FNAEBEL Mr. Li Guang (Chief Executive Officer from é March 2012

XA TEFFTAHTESE) and re-designated as Executive Director from
Non-executive Director thereon)

BELE(BHTHEZ—F——F=A~H) Mr. Zang Wei (Chief Executive Officer through é March 2012)
(R=ZFE——#=H AFF) (resigned on 6 March 2012)

IRELRE Mr. Wang Lijun

FEHITEE Non-executive Directors

Atk E Mr. Fang Shili

RRELT (R -F——F= =1 HAEZE) Ms. Zhang Jianhua (appointed on 30 March 20/2)

BIEHITEE Independent Non-executive Directors
TEREEAE Mr. Wang Dechen

BBRZt Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice

REREE Mr. Gordon Ng

EEVREABENAFERENEREY The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 2| and 27 of
B BEALAME  EESFEZELETEHER this Annual Report. The Directors are unrelated to each other in every aspect
B - including financial, business or family.

EHeTHemUSEaE LN NESETES The Board meets regularly and Board Meetings are held at least four times a
EHeeR AFETHEES R AL year at approximately quarterly intervals. Regular Board Meetings of the year
ZH o YemEERLYRLI4B R E are scheduled in advance and at least 14 days' notice is given to Directors so as
HE#OHFEOE 2RESHER S BH to give them an opportunity to attend. All Directors are given an opportunity
EEMAESC SR - EEREaEEe R to include matters in the agenda for Board Meetings. The Directors may attend

FRenERdENRARE(EMER2ES a meeting in person or may participate by means of a conference telephone or
SATHREREINE )z R2EeE o similar communication equipment by means of which all persons participating

in the meeting are capable of hearing each other.
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Six Board Meetings and an AGM and an Extraordinary General Meeting were
held during the year ended 31 December 2012. The attendance record of
each Director at the said meetings during the year ended 3| December 2012
is set out below :-

mE
HE/ BITERAE
Number of Meetings Attended/Held
Exee3 BRREFAE BRRERIAE
Board Annual  Extraordinary
Meetings General Meeting General Meeting
HTES Executive Directors
BHELE(EFR) Mr. Han Shuwang (Chairman) 6/6 /1 /1
IRREE(GIEER) Mr. Wang Xiaodong (Vice-Chairman) 5/6 /1 /1
FhEHE Mr. Li Guang 516 /1 /1
BELE(E-ZE—-%F  Mr Zang Wei
=ARH) (through 6 March 2012) I/1 0/0 0/0
FHEEE Mr. Wang Lijun 6/6 [/1 [/1
FHTES Non-executive Directors
At hEE Mr. Fang Shili 4/6 0/l 071
RREELT(M-F——%F Ms ZhangJianhua
=ZA=1+Hi#) (from 30 March 2012) 3/4 [/1 [/1
BUFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
TERiat Mr. Wang Dechen 6/6 /1 /1
LS Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice 6/6 /1 /1
RERESE Mr. Gordon Ng 516 /1 /1
EEeAREAMTREEYRATNER B The Board is responsible for determining those matters that are to be retained
(BB EBEREEHERIE  HEHBE  for full Board including, but not limited to, overall strategy and long-term
B FEEE EBRENB®RE  FHK objectives, new business activities, annual budgets, business plans and financial
PEREENE  BERAEENBRHEESEE K statements, interim and final results announcements, material acquisitions and

B AXNRR RAE  FEAREETZ &

EREREBEEK  URBERS -
EZSCAREERAREERTRBE LA
FIE BRETR? )EE@&%W%%@%

REZKERBEE BEEXEBEL /M2
FR o URERREREE ZA % BEZHIE -

o B A K B R B R ( ) BRA
2012 F

disposals of assets, investments, capital projects and commitments, annual
internal control assessment, funding and risk management policies as well as

connected transactions.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility in respect of
management and administrative functions to management including, but not
limited to, implementing and achieving the strategies and objectives set by
the Board as well as overseeing the performance of different business units/
departments and monitoring and implementing proper internal controls and

systems.
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Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties and
the Terms of Reference of Corporate Governance Functions of the Board was
adopted on 30 March 2012. The main corporate govemance duties which are

being performed by the Board are as follows:-

(@) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on

corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

() to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance

manual, if any, applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company's compliance with the code and disclosure in

the Corporate Governance Report.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer ("CEQ") are
separate and are performed by different individuals so as to ensure a clear
division between the Chairman'’s responsibility to manage the Board and the
CEO's responsibility to manage the Company's business. In 2012, Mr. Han
Shuwang was the Chairman, and Mr. Li Guang or Mr. Zang Wei was the CEO,
of the Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

There are currently three Independent Non-executive Directors. During the
year ended 3| December 2012, the Board at all times met the requirements
of the Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules in appointment
of a sufficient number of three Independent Non-executive Directors,
representing one third of the Board, one of whom has appropriate professional

qualifications, accounting and financial management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors their annual confirmation of independence and considered that each
of the Independent Non-executive Directors is independent in accordance
with the guidelines for assessing independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the

Listing Rules.
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EEMABHERRIENAZHANLRKET  The Directors acknowledge the need to continue to develop and refresh
AIRAREEHER - TRIMIIBEEN2012  their knowledge and skills for making contributions to the Company.
FREVEELTARAEEAL  BEKBE  The participation by individual directors in the continuous professional
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development programme with appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions

and duties of a director of a listed company in 2012 is recorded in the table

below.
BEEE
RE
EHEHR SHEBRTEE
Reading Attending
regulatory development

updates programmes
Executive Directors
Han Shuwang v 4
Wang Xiaodong v/ 4
Li Guang v 4
Wang Lijun v/ 4
Non-executive Directors
Fang Shili v/ 4
Zhang Jianhua v 4
Independent Non-executive
Directors
Wang Dechen v 4
Kan Lai Kuen, Alice v 4
Gordon Ng v 4
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprised three members and was chaired by
Mr. Li Guang, a Non-executive Director with Ms. Alice Kan and Mr. Gordon
Ng, Independent Non-executive Directors as members through 29 March
2012; and comprises five members and is chaired by Mr. Wang Dechen, an
Independent Non-executive Director, with Mr. Li Guang, an Executive Director
and CEO, Ms. Alice Kan and Mr. Gordon Ng, Independent Non-executive
Directors, and Ms. Zhang Jianhua, a Non-executive Director as members from
30 March 2012.

The Terms of Reference of the Remuneration Committee updated on 30
March 2012 are aligned with the Code Provisions of the CG Code. The main

duties of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:-

(i) to recommend to the Board on the Company's policy and structure for

all Directors’ and senior management's remuneration;

(i) to review and approve the management's remuneration proposals with

reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;

(i) to recommend to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual

Executive Directors and senior management;

(iv) to recommend to the Board on the remuneration of Non-executive

Directors;

(v)  to review and approve compensation payable to Executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or

appointment; and

(vi)  to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal

or removal of Directors for misconduct.
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A Remuneration Committee Meeting was held during the year ended
31 December 2012. The attendance record of each member at the
Remuneration Committee Meeting during the year ended 31 December 2012

is set out below :-

HERY, ARLERERY
Number of attendance/
Number of meetings
entitled to attend

Non-executive Director

Mr. Li Guang (Chairman) [/
Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice /1
Mr. Gordon Ng /1

The work performed by the Remuneration Committee for the year ended
3| December 2012 was in accordance with the Terms of Reference of the
Remuneration Committee and is summarised below :-

(i)  reviewed the existing remuneration policy (structure and procedure) for

all Directors’ and senior management's remuneration;

(i) recommended the amount of remuneration to be paid to each
Executive Director and senior management member for the year ended
31 December 201 | with reference to corporate goals and objectives
and reviewed the amount of Director’s fees to be paid to each Non-

executive Director for the year ended 31 December 201 |.

The amount of remuneration paid to each Director for the year ended 3|

December 2012 is set out in Note |12 to the consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 30 March 2012 and
comprised five members. It is chaired by Mr. Han Shuwang, the Chairman,
with Mr. Wang Lijun, Mr. Wang Dechen, Ms. Alice Kan and Mr. Gordon Ng as

members.
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The Company has adopted Terms of Reference of the Nomination Committee
on 30 March 2012 which are aligned with the Code Provisions of the CG

Code. The main duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows :-

()

to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed change to the Board to complement

the Company's corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals

nominated for directorship;

to assess the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors;

and

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the Chairman and the CEO.

No Nomination Committee Meeting was held during the year ended 3|

December 2012 but a Nomination Committee Meeting was held on 26 March

2013. The attendance record of each member at the meeting is set out below -

HE/BTEERY
Nomination Number of Meetings
Committee Members Attended/Held
Mr. Han Shuwang (Chairman) /1
Mr. Wang Lijun [/1
Mr. Wang Dechen /1
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice [/
Mr. Gordon Ng /1
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The work performed by the Nomination Committee up to 26 March
2013 was in accordance with the Terms of Reference of the Nomination

Committee and is summarised below :-

() reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board to implement the Company's

corporate strategy;

(i) assessed the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors in
accordance with the guidelines for assessing independence as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules; and

(i) recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of the retiring
Directors who have offered themselves for re-election at the 2013
AGM and considered succession planning for Directors, in particular, the
Chairman and the CEO.

Before the establishment of the Nomination Committee, the role and function
of such a committee was performed by the Chairman. Such nomination had
then to be approved by the Board. Any Director appointed (i) to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office only until the first general meeting of shareholders
subsequent to his appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting;
and (i) as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office until the next
following annual general meeting of the shareholders of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election at such meeting under the Company's

Articles of Association.

During the year, the Chairman nominated Ms. Zhang Jianhua to be appointed
as a Non-executive Director. The said nomination was approved by the Board
at the Board Meeting held on 30 March 2012. In accordance with Article 99
of the Company’s Articles of Association, Ms. Zhang retired at the 2012 AGM
and was re-elected therein.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises four members and is chaired by Ms. Alice
Kan, with Mr. Wang Dechen, Mr. Gordon Ng and Mr. Fang Shili as members.

The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee updated on 30 March 2012
are aligned with the Code Provisions of the CG Code. The main duties of the

Audit Committee are as follows :-

()

(vi)

to recommend to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and to answer any

questions of resignation or dismissal of the auditor;

to monitor the integrity of the Company's financial statements, annual
report and accounts and half-year report and to review any significant
financial reporting judgments contained therein before submission to the
Board,

to review the contents of the representation letter to the external

auditor prior to submission to the Board;

to review the Company's financial controls, internal control and risk

management systems;

to consider major investigation findings on internal control matters
as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and management's

response to these findings;

to ensure co-ordination between the intemal and external auditors and
to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced, has
appropriate standing within the Company and to review and monitor its

effectiveness; and
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(vi)) to review the Group's financial accounting policies and practices.

Two Audit Committee Meetings were held during the year ended 3|
December 2012. The attendance record of each member at the Audit

Committee Meetings is set out below :-

BERE,/ BEREERE
Number of attendance/
Number of meetings
entitled to attend

Non-executive Director

Mr. Fang Shili 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Wang Dechen 2/2
Mr. Gordon Ng 2/2

The work performed by the Audit Committee for the year ended 31
December 2012 was in accordance with the Terms of Reference of the Audit

Committee and is mainly summarised below :-

(i) reviewed and discussed with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu ("DTT"),
the external auditor of the Company, before submission to the Board
the Company's consolidated financial statements in the annual report,
interim report and significant financial reporting judgments contained

therein for monitoring the integrity of the reports;

(i) reviewed the reports from the Head of Internal Audit on assessment
of the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group
covering material controls for financial, operational, compliance and risk

management;

(iii)  reviewed and approved the internal audit plans for the period to
30 September 2013 from the Head of Internal Audit;

(iv)  reviewed the continuing connected transactions;



BREIRAEEE

LZREREZEGHMABKEBENK  TREARE
HHEELE  KERTIBEREL FHALE X
BRAELERENERLLE -

FREREZBEZRAANAKEZHRR
REFELRRBAESSRMEEZS - HE
TRt A=t HULEFEYEARE
REEBEZBEEEH -

A ST

BINAKBLERRASACEZEAR
EEZIBREM -BE-_T--F1+_H
=t —-BULFEEREH  MEEIIMT

TEERRES
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Development and Investment Committee

The Development and Investment Committee comprises five members and
is chaired by Mr. Han Shuwang with Mr. Wang Xiaodong, Mr. Li Guang, Mr.
Wang Dechen and Mr. Wang Lijun as members.

The duty of the Development and Investment Committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on the Group's development and investment
plan and strategies. No Development and Investment Committee meeting was

convened during the year ended 31 December 2012.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

DTT was appointed as the external auditor of the Group by the shareholders
at the last AGM of the Group. The remuneration to DTT recognised for the

year ended 3| December 2012 was set out as follows:

BRAMREREZER Fees relating to services rendered
FET
HK$000
EETARTS Audit services 3,000
rh #1225 AR 7% Interim review services 400
3,400

EECMBGRRERE

ARREZRARSHERERT HRBEMK
FERRAEMATHRRARRRENMBL
Al(ABIAREDEBIRZFEER - BESF
SRS M BRERARE Z EEHIINE 54
BERESEZBYZBMBEN - KIELE
EEHE  EFRR/AKEABRABFRAR
AITE R R AR H g - AUt EERAR
TREENARMBREAMBRE -

BURHA s B RETHRE4ERESE
BN REBEREA

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBLITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The Company's Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare
consolidated accounts for each half and full financial year which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries (together “the
Group"). The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing consolidated financial
statements are set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 54
and 55. The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue its operational existence for the
foreseeable future and thus it is appropriate to adopt the going concem basis

in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The reporting responsibilities of the Independent Auditor are set out in the

Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 54 and 55.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective
internal controls to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the Group's
assets. The Group's internal control systems are designed to provide
reasonable assurance that material misstatements or losses can be avoided,

and to manage and minimise risks of failure in operational systems.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control systems. The Group has an Internal Audit
Team reporting directly to the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Team
performs regular independent reviews of all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
of the Group and evaluates their adequacy and effectiveness on a continuing
basis. The annual audit plan is discussed and agreed every year with the
Audit Committee. A report of audit findings is submitted to the members of
the Audit Committee and discussed at the Audit Committee Meetings. The
audit reports are then followed up by the Internal Audit Team to ensure
recommended actions have been taken on the findings previously identified
such that they are properly resolved. Internal audits are designed to provide
the Board with reasonable assurance that sound and effective internal control
systems of the Group are implemented for protecting the Group's assets and

identifying business risks.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's internal control
system covering all material controls, including financial, operational,
compliance and risk management for the year under review and in view of
the above, it opined that the Group's internal control systems are effective,
adequate and in compliance with the Code Provisions on internal control of
the CG Code.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group has adopted the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code™) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code for dealing
in securities of the Group by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry,
all the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide the Group's
shareholders with detailed information on the Group so that they can exercise

their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and
comprehensive and transparent reporting of its performance and activities.

These include interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars.

The Group encourages its shareholders to attend AGM to ensure a high level
of accountability and to be kept informed of the Group's strategy and goals.
The Chairman of the Board and the chairman of all the Board Committees, or
in their absence, other members of the respective committees, are available
to answer any questions from the shareholders. A separate resolution is
proposed by the Chairman in respect of each issue to be considered at the
AGM, including the re-election of Directors. An AGM circular was distributed
to all shareholders at least 20 clear business days prior to the AGM (at least
10 clear business days in the case of all other general meetings), setting out
details of each proposing resolution, poll voting procedures and other relevant

information.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, all general meetings of the Company are to be
conducted by poll: the Chairman will at the commencement of the meeting
ensure that an explanation of the detailed procedures for conducting a poll is
provided and then answer any questions from shareholders regarding voting by
way of a poll. The poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange on the business day of the shareholders’ meeting

thereafter.

As a channel to further effective communication, the Group maintains a
website at http://www.energine.hk where the Group's announcements,
business developments and operations, financial information, corporate

governance practices and other information are posted.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to Article 72 of the Company's Articles of Association, shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition (“the
Written Requisition”), specifying the proposed resolution (“the Proposed
Resolution”) accompanied by a statement in respect of the matter referred to
in the Proposed Resolution, to the Company Secretary of the Company at its
Head Office, to request the Board to include the Proposed Resolution in the
agenda for the annual general meeting or to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be convened by the Board for transaction of any business specified

in such Written Requisition.

Shareholders may at any time send their written enquiries and concemns by
post or by fax to the Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary of
the Company at its Head Office as follows -

The Company Secretary

China Energine International (Holdings) Ltd
Suite 4701, 47th Floor,

Central Plaza,

|8 Harbour Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements
for the year ended 3| December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the activities
of its principal subsidiaries and associates are set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in

the consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income on page 56 to 57.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year are

set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are set out in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed

any of the Company's listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Articles
of Association or the laws in the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the

Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

During the year 2012, the Company has no share option scheme adopted in

place.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company's reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31
December 2012 were HK$1,268,360,000 (201 I: HK$1,182,097,000).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Han Shuwang (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Xiaodong (Vice-Chairman)
Mr. Li Guang
(Chief Executive Officer from 6 March 2012)
(re-designated as Executive Director from Non-executive Director thereon)
Mr. Zang Wei
(Chief Executive Officer through 6 March 20/2)
(resigned on 6 March 2012)
Mr. Wang Lijun

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Fang Shili
Ms. Zhang Jianhua
(appointed on 30 March 2012)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Dechen
Ms. Kan Lai Kuen, Alice
Mr. Gordon Ng



BUFRTESCANABABETANER
KERARRMEERBF SR - SUBL
WTEFZBEERBEFHA=F -/
AREREER  WERET -

o
[z

I
S
o>
el

BEARFABERS EFTHRE - it
NEE IREAERRERELE(ARES
R) > ARABBRITZBRAFREREER -
R ERL BB RET -

EEREEH

BB ET RRAFAS LEEEECE
EHEEAD B SAMME R AR EEAA
AEEARAR—FARIEMRNHEECEERS
fBRRIN 2 RIFEH) -

EENEHNDP 2R

RELBEIAFENEAERE - AR7 - £E
B AR - ERARRF RN ERRHES
BEMEANTEFERNEARAEAN R
BRIERAH -

EERREITHASR KGR
R REEEZEERRE

T—HB  FARAEFR
AZBHEARENAR
AREREIE(EERES AR E(E
Z MR GRA D EXVER) 2 Bdn - KD &
ERETEEKEES RRERIIEXVEHET
B8R HAMEARRREAREXHMER
AR (BREREESLBEHIE
IR EARKEFIGARER < am AR
FRC MK IR 77 R B IR0 352 (R AR TF
MBS IAR KB AES L
TRAT ETRA ) ETRTERETESRR
FHEETRIBNGARA KB Rz

PN
/ﬁ\\’E °

EZEHEE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The tenures of offices of the Non-executive Director are from the date they
were last elected to the date of their retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company's Articles of Association; those of the Independent Non-
executive Directors are of a fixed term of 3 years but subject to retirement

and re-election under the Company's Articles of Association.

Mr. Fang Shili, Mr. Wang Dechen and Mr. Gordon Ng by rotation, shall retire
at the close of the forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with the
Article 116 of the Company's Articles of Association and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the employing company within one

year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries,
its holding companies or its fellow subsidiaries was party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2012, none of the Directors and chief executives of the
Company or their respective associates had any interest or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Future Ordinance (the “SFO")) which are required to be notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of SFO), or to be recorded in the register required to be
maintained pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise to be notified
to the Company or the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transaction by Directors of Listed Companies in the Rules

Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
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DIRECTOR’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company or their associates
(as defined in the "Listing Rules”) to acquire benefits by means of acquisition

of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2012, so far as is known to the Directors, the persons/
entities had an interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or, who
was, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of

any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general

meetings of any other member of the Group and the amount of each of such

person’s interest in such securities or in any options in respect of such capital

were as follows:

R E BEED L
E27) Number Percentage
Capacity of shares of shareholding
(et 1)
(Note 1)
BRRIER R AR (F72) 2,649,244,000 (L) 66.75%
Interest of a controlled
corporation (Note 2)
BEXEHRRIES(ME3) 2,649,244,000 (L) 66.75%
Interest of a controlled
corporation (Note 3)
EnEBA 2,649,244,000 (L) 66.75%

Beneficial owner

Note:

I The letter “L" denotes the shareholder’s long position in the shares.

2. CASC is deemed to be interested in 2,649,244,000 shares as it holds 100% of

the equity of CALT.

3. Astrotech is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CALT. Accordingly, CALT is deemed
to be interested in all the shares held by Astrotech.
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Save as disclosed herein, according to the register of interests kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO and so far as was known to the
Directors, there is no other person/entity who, as at 3|1 December 2012,
had any interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who was, directly or indirectly, interested in
10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any member of the Group

orin any options in respect of such capital.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group has entered into the following connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions which are required to be

disclosed in accordance with Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules:

(I) Continuing Connected Transactions

(A) Purchase of Wind Turbine Blades for Turbine
Assembling

It was announced on 29 December 201 that two subsidiaries
of the Company, Inner Mongolia CASC Energine Wind Turbine
Manufacture Co. Ltd. (“IM Turbine Manufacture”) and Inner
Mongolia CASC Energine Composite Material Co. Ltd. (“IM
Composite Material”) entered into a Framework Agreement
whereby IM Composite Material was and is to supply wind turbine
blades as to 900KW and 2MW to IM Turbine Manufacture from
time to time in accordance with the terms of the Framework
Agreement for the three financial years ending 31 December

2014 (“Framework Agreement”).
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(B)

Since one of the shareholders of IM Composite Material as to
41.03% shareholding is Aerospace Research Institute of Materials
& Processing Technology (“Aerospace Material”), which is a
subsidiary of CALT, the Company's major controlling shareholder,
IM Composite Material is a connected person of the Company
by virtue of being a non wholly-owned subsidiary with the said
more than 0% shareholding. The supplies of wind turbine blades
by IM Composite Material under the Framework Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions under Chapter
[4A of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the Framework Agreement, the maximum
purchase costs payable by IM Turbine Manufacture under
the Framework Agreement for the three years ending 3|
December 2014 amount to RMB199,700,000, RMB204,900,000
and RMB249,700,000 respectively. The total purchase costs
recognized and payable by IM Turbine Manufacture pursuant
to purchase agreements under the Framework Agreement
amounted to RMB22,162,000 for the year 2012 which was within
the annual cap of RMB199,700,000.

Leasing of Property

[t was also announced on 29 December 2011 that Inner
Mongolia Energine New Energy Development Co. Ltd. (“IM New
Energy”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a property leasing agreement with IM Composite Material
whereby IM New Energy was to lease its premises of No.I
Aerospace Road, Xing Wang Jiao Industrial Park, Xinghe County,
Inner Mongolia to IM Turbine Manufacture as industrial plant,
office, warehouse and associated facilities for manufacture of
turbine blades and other composite materials for a 2-year term
from | January 2012 to 31 December 2013 at an annual rental
and management fee of RMB5,301,000 in total.
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Since IM Composite Material is a connected person as aforesaid,
the leasing of property to them constituted continuing connected
transactions under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules. The total
lease amount received by IM New Energy pursuant thereto for
the year 2012 amounted to RMB5,301,000 in total which was
equal to the agreed amount of RMB5,301,000.

Annual Review of the Continuing Connected

Transactions

The Company has engaged the auditor of the Company
to conduct a review of the above 2 transactions (A) to (B)
(“Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions”) for the year
ended 31 December 2012. The auditor has reported their factual
findings to the board of directors (the “Board") of the Company.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed the Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions
for the vear ended 31 December 2012 and confirmed that the
Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions have been entered

into:

() inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2)  either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from

independent third parties; and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
the transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a

whole.
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In addition, the auditor of the Company has confirmed to the

Board of Directors in writing that the Disclosed Continuing

Connected Transactions for the year ended 31 December 2012:

(1

nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe
that the Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions
have not been approved by the Company's board of

directors.

for transactions involving the provision of goods or services
by the Group, nothing has come to our attention that
causes us to believe that the transactions were not, in all
material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of

the Company.

nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements

governing such transactions.

with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the
continuing connected transactions set out above, nothing
has come to our attention that causes us to believe that
the Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions have
exceeded the maximum aggregate annual value disclosed
in the previous announcement dated 29 December 201 |
made by the Company in respect of each of the Disclosed

Continuing Connected Transactions.
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(D) Supply of Wind Turbines, Wind Turbine Blades and

Associated Services

[t was announced on 5 September 2012 that IM Turbine
Manufacture and Beijing Energine Industry Co. Ltd,, 2 subsidiaries
of the Company entered into a Framework Agreement with
Shanghai Hanli Machine Tool Co. Ltd. (“Shanghai Hanli") whereby
the 2 subsidiaries were to supply wind turbine primary control
systems and the associated services incidental thereto to Shanghai
Hanli in accordance with the terms of the Framework Agreement
for the period ended 31 December 2012.

Since Shanghai Hanli is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company's major controlling shareholder of CALT, Shanghai
Hanli is a connected person of the Company and IM Composite
Material is a connected person as aforesaid, the supplies of wind
turbines, wind turbine blades and associated services to Shanghai
Hanli under the Framework Agreement constituted continuing

connected transactions under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the Framework Agreement, the maximum purchase
costs and fees payable by Shanghai Hanli under the Framework
Agreement for the period ended 31 December 2012 amount
to RMBI,500,000. There were no sales and fees for associated
services recognized and receivable by the subsidiaries pursuant
to supply agreement under the Framework Agreement for
the period ended 3| December 2012 in applying the cap of
RMBI,500,000.
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(1) Connected Transaction

Commissioning relating to Research and Development
Project on 3MW Wind Turbine Blade

It was announced on || September 2012 that IM Composite Material,
a subsidiary of the Company, entered into a Commissioning Agreement
with Aerospace Material in relation to pursuit of a research and
development project on 3MW wind turbine blade as commissioned by
Aerospace Material at a contract sum of RMB13,502,000.

Since Aerospace Material and IM Composite Material are connected
persons of the Company as aforesaid, the Commissioning relating to
a research and development project on 3MW wind turbine blade
supplies of wind turbine blades by IM Composite Material under the
Commissioning Agreement constituted a connected transaction under
Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2012, turnover attributable to the five
largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 91% of the
Group's turnover and turnover attributable to the Group's largest customer

accounted for approximately 40% of the Group's turnover.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, purchases attributable to the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 21% of the
Group's purchases and purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier

accounted for approximately |1% of the Group's purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, any shareholder who owns more than 5% of the Company's issued

share capital had any interests in the above five largest customers or suppliers.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31 December 2012.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to reappoint
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Han Shuwang

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2013
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TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL
(HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Energine
International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 56 to 168, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2012, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are

free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2012, and of the Group's
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance

with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2013
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE—F——F1-A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

(i3 2012 2011
NOTES FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
R Turnover 5 989,885 406,285
HERAR Cost of sales (1,010,356) (381,730)
£ (&) # Gross (loss) profit (20,471) 24,555
HAA Other income 7 44,552 23,678
H e B 18 Other gains and losses 8 14,960 (5062)
HE R HKAR Selling and distribution expenses (50,687) (20,193)
THER Administrative expenses (161,923) (114,884)
KEYERATELE N Increase in fair value of
investment property —_ 5,640
BIRERAR Finance costs 9 (88,011) (62013)
i AN E Share of results of associates 16,896 15,689
FIEHRAEHIERES Share of results of jointly
controlled entities 169,038 145,813
BB RS B iR Reversal of impairment loss
ZREEE recognised in respect of interest
in a jointly controlled entity 20 89,000 =
PR A Profit before taxation 10 13,354 13223
HIA Taxation I (7,933) (11318)
REERF Profit for the year 5,421 1,905
R i K B R B ( ) BIRA A

2012 &£ #f
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE_F——F 1 _A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 20/2

Bt 2012 2011
NOTES FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
Hig2EWA (Fx%) Other comprehensive
income (expense):
hE25EKES Exchange differences arising
ZIEHER on translation to
presentation currency 52,890 56,541
A ESHEE Change in fair value
NHEEE of available-for-sale
financial asset (14,881) =
FAZEBA LT Total comprehensive income
for the year 43,430 58,446
FAUATATEGRT Profit for the year attributable to:
ARAEEA Owners of the Company 26,598 11472
IRt Non-controlling interests (21,177) (9.567)
5,421 1,905
AT AT RELS Total comprehensive
eI NG income attributable to:
EARHEBA Owners of the Company 58,758 64921
JEPE M R Non-controlling interests (15,328) (6,475)
43,430 58,446
FREMN-ER Earnings per share — Basic 14 HK cent 0.67/&1l  HK cent 029/l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R-F——F+=ZHA=+—FH
At 3| December 2012

& 2012 2011
NOTES FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
FRBEE Non-current assets

REME Investment property [5 38,725 37,680
ER S Property, plant and equipment 16 501,383 450,099

WEEmE - BB MR Deposits paid for acquisition

Freftei&e of property, plant
and equipment 22,851 14293
S Goodwil 17 2,004 4903
BEEE Intangible assets 18 68,776 69,842
ERENIRE E Deferred tax assets 30 3,090 3,985
NN T Interests in associates 19 399,975 370,566
KRG B 5 2 Em Interests in jointly
controlled entities 20 1,416,222 1,272,882
At ESREE Available-for-sale financial asset 21 102,944 —
2,555,970 2,224,250
REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 2 482,686 469,638
B 5 R E AWK Trade and other receivables 23 879,697 558,342
JRE Wi Bt 25 X B 5K Amounts due from associates 24 15,448 45,856
FEUR L[R5 I B BB X Amounts due from

jointly controlled entities 25 140,460 161,795
EEBRITER Pledged bank deposits 26 24,947 22,606
EHIIRITER Fixed bank deposits - 12,409
RITEFLERSE Bank balances and cash 26 462,393 356,562
2,005,631 1,627,208

T B A K B I B R ) BRA A
2012 £



rE MR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REF——F+=-A=+—H

At 3| December 2012

BiEE 2012 2011
NOTES FET TRET
HK$’000 HK$000
REAE Current liabilities
B 5 REAMERK Trade and other payables 27 526,986 525,090
FEfTEE R AR Amounts due to associates 24 134,584 63,708
FER H RS E RN Amount due to a
jointly controlled entity 25 22,573 —
BT e B Government grants 31 502 249
e 1518 Taxation payable 489 674
RIER Warranty provision 28 31,218 22,380
R—FREH 2 &% Borrowings - amount due
within one year 29 792,378 530,400
1,508,730 1,143,501
REEEFHE Net current assets 496,901 483,707
EEAERRBEE Total assets less current liabilities 3,052,871 2,707,957
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
R—E&EH 2z B Borrowings - amount due
after one year 29 1,044,324 796,548
EERERAR Deferred tax liabilities 30 18,823 19,188
BB Government grants 31 8,531 7,830
1,071,678 823,566
1,981,193 1,884,391
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R-F——F+=A=+—H

At 3| December 2012
BiEE 2012 2011
NOTES FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
EEXRR#E Capital and reserves
B Share capital 32 396,900 396,900
s Reserves 1,387,007 327,124
ZN/NSIE 2PN Equity attributable to owners
fEfh TR of the Company 1,783,907 1,724,024
JEFR 1A Non-controlling interests 197,286 160,367
A Total equity 1,981,193 1,884,391
TINES6E 168 A ZEAMBEIRE - TVEEE  The consolidated financial statements on pages 56 to 168 were approved
ER-E-—=F=A-+tHMEREE L  and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2013 and are
RATESHAREE signed on its behalf by:

BRI =k
Han Shuwang Li Guang
HITEE HITEE
Executive Director Executive Director

60 HEMAERER(EE) AR A
2012 &£ #f



GARREEE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE_F——F 1 _A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2012

AEREEARE
Attributable to owners of the Company
IREE  EEEG #lte
i i fit
BE  BHRE  REEE  Property Aset  EXEE  ZEEE  ZiEE Non-
Share Special Share  revaluation revaluation  Exchange  General Accumulated 88 controlling £g
capitll  reseve  premim  reserve  reseve  reseve  reserve losses Totdl  interests Total

&t &t &t &t &t &t &1 &t &t &L &L
w00 SO0 HSOY MW HSY A MW MW S HSW AW

(1) ()

(Mot ) (NoteJ)
RE—-5-3-R At enaay 2011 R R 143 1 13% |66067 A5 (1437 169103 100064 1759167
FERRTIER) Proftoss) for the year - - - - - - - 11472 11472 (3567) 1905
RESISHECIRIZE Bdwgedfoencesaingon

franslation to presentaton curency = = = = = N4 = = 34 30 %4

RERRENASE Tota comprehensive income fo te year - - - - B4 - [147 )l (6475) S
HEATHEREERRE  Captel conbuton fom nonontrllng

ESRIELTRAHLEERS

interests ofa subsidary = = = = = = = = = 719% 719%
Diidend declred to nor-controling

interetsof a sbsiday = = = = = = = = (50 (520
L Tranfr = = = = = 16% (69%9) = = =
RIB—EZR=1-B  At3I December 011 36300 1755 2483141 139 = 21516 Q10 (19%8%%) 1740 160367 18843
RERRTIER) Proft (oss) forthe year - - - - - - - 16,59 16,59 (2nim) 541
RESHSMELIRNAE D dferencesarsngon

franslaon to presentaton curency - - - - - 41,041 - - 41,041 5,849 52,890
IRIESRERNTERD  Chngeinfenvdeof

avlatle-orsde fnancel aset - - - = (1488 - - = (1488 = (14881)
FERAAFMALE  Totlcomprehensie (epense)

income for he year - - - - (14881) 104 - 16,59 58,758 (15329) 4340
HEATHEREERRE  Captl conbuton fom nonontrling

Interests n subsciaes - - - - - - - - - 51368 57368
WENTHAAARERED Changen ownestip nterests n subsilars - - - - - - - 1,125 1,125 (1,125) -
EEMBARALSERRS  Diidend dedared tonon<ontoling

interetsof a sbsiday - - - - - - - - - (3,996) (3,996)
# T e V1 - -
RB-ZEZA=1-8 At3l December 201 396,900 (17554 2,483,141 1,399 (14881) 268,557 41513 (1,516,276) 1783907 197286 1,981,193

CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
Annual Report 2012

61



62

GARRRDE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BE—F——F1-A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Pt aE -

AEEZ B REEARREETRAR
BEEARRMEANBAREETRAR
B EBRBEAKER-ANAELENA
T RETEAMMEBREEER AR
16,025,000 % 7T ©

LTRRETERERMEARLMB(H
B DRMERRERE () BEEFERR
() EREEXBORBES -

TEMXBRER(EE) BARAF

2012 F #

Note:

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the
nominal amount of the share capital issued by the Company and the nominal
amount of the issued share capital of the subsidiaries acquired by the
Company and the aggregate amount of HK$ 116,025,000 transferred from
other reserves pursuant to the Group's reorganisation on | | August 1997.

Included in general reserve is reserve fund of a subsidiary in the People's
Republic of China (the “PRC") which can be used only to (i) make up prior
years' losses or (ii) expand production operations.



n‘/T\ }Eﬁlilbiﬂ%
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE-—T——F1+-A=1—HIFFE
For the year ended 3| December 2012

2012 201 |
FET TRET
HK$’000 HK$000
K= Pry ) Operating activities
B A& Profit before taxation 13,354 13223
S THISEELRBE - Adjustments for:
FMEKA Interest income (10,307) (10478)
FMEFAX Interest expenses 88,011 62013
i k- YNGIE Share of profit of associates (16,896) (15,689)
FEfE R H B8 XE Share of profit of jointly
controlled entities (169,038) (145813)
BHR 2 BT Govemment grants recognised (502) (240)
B EEEN Amortisation of intangible assets 12,330 1996
ME - BERREZITE Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment 33,844 27,935
RO AR EEER 2 REBR Impairment loss reversed in respect
of interest in a jointly
controlled entity (89,000) —
HEMEREIRR 2 W Gain on disposal of a property
development project (23,280) —
HEME R RS2 s Gain on disposal of interests
in associates (11,802) (5517)
EREMEHE ZRERR Impairment loss recognised in
respect of goodwill 2,899 —
REMEZ R FEESH WS Gain on fair value changes
of investment property - (5,640)
EREHE SR RERR Impairment losses recognised
in respect of trade receivables 45 10,381
W EEBE Z REKZRERE Recovery of impairment loss in
respect of trade receivables (5,018) —
MREGERE Allowance for obsolete inventories 1,058 1,479
7ol e Wi & X R FR0R Reversal of amount due from
an associate —_ 1,223
A UNSIP R SNvil Unrealised profit in associate — 7,184
HENE - BERkREz (KR ER (Gain) loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment ¢)) 587
BRREREB Utilisation of warranty provision (5,987) (7,843)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE—F——F1-A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 201 |
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
HEECEPILEEHR SRS Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital (180,298) (65,199)
BEZRA (M) Decrease (increase) in inventories 72,677 (340929)
5 M A A 2 S Increase in trade and other receivables (230,790) (156,473)
BHREMENTRZEM Increase in trade and other payables 30,304 205,412
R 21 Increase in warranty provision 14,204 3462
FE ST & A B3R 2 38 A Increase in amounts due to associates 70,876 63,190
JEMRESE & R R 2R A (BB n) Decrease (increase) in amounts due
from associates 31,679 (43,622)
B’W%Zfﬁ% Cash used in operations (191,348) (334,159)
B AT {585 Income taxes paid (8,710) (8,103)
RETHIARE TR Net cash used in operating activities (200,058) (342,262)
thE K M RE R EE) BRA

2012 £ #f
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Fr-HA=+—HIFE

For the year ended 3| December 2012

2012 201 |
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
REED Investing activities
HAZEHERZBR Advance to a jointly controlled entity — (90,126)
BEUHLESREE Purchase of available-for-sale financial asset (118,399) —
REERNE ZRE Investments in associates (25,314) (72,480)
BEVE  BERR Purchase of property, plant
and equipment (19,443) (78,852)
WEYE  BERR Deposits paid for acquisition of
EfRRE property, plant and equipment (15,417) (13,785)
BERVEE Purchase of intangible assets (81,166) —
(FROBBREEMRITER (Placement) release of pledged
bank deposits (2,341) 10,038
HEZEHERZKE Investment in a jointly controlled entity (1,480) —
Q KR B BUE S Dividend received from
a jointly controlled entity 97,813 142,991
HEYMEREIRE MEX Proceeds on disposal of
a property development project 36,998 =
HRAEHEREEEX Repayment of loan from
a jointly controlled entity 29,599 12,000
BERARZEHIER RES Guarantee deposit received from
a jointly controlled entity 22,573 =
BB E R RGN Proceeds on disposal of associates 13,610 17,770
HEMBAR - MKRAERRLEEY  Disposal of a subsidiary, net of cash
and cash equivalents —_ (809)
EHRITE OB (BE ) Decrease (increase) in fixed
bank deposits 12,409 (413)
BEUFE Interest received 5,709 10,478
B X R IR 2 AR, Dividend received from associates 4,191 31,781
HEME - BB RREMEK Proceeds on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 1,229 1,298
REZDIAZREFHR Net cash used in investing activities (39,429) (30,109)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE—F——F1-A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 201 |
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
METH Financing activities
MEAER New loans raised 1,056,916 1,010,400
BRER Repayment of borrowings (583,955) (765,852)
ERME Interest paid (88,011) (62,013)
IFf B 2 Rl FEHE IR RIEEE Repayment of loan to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary (68,114) —
B A P B 2 B IR R M AR AL Dividend paid to non-controlling
shareholders of a subsidiary (5,220) —
MEAR—RIEEHERREE Capital contribution from a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary 9,866 71,998
METHAEEZRERE Net cash from financing activities 321,482 254,533
RekReFEMEMORD ) FEE Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents 81,995 (117,838)
SNEEREE B Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 23,836 24,339
FzHe RREEED Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 356,562 450,061
FRZAERREEEBW(RITERKRE) Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year, representing bank
balances and cash 462,393 356,562

T B A K B I B R ) BRA A
2012 £
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—BEn

ARARA—RRAEHSEME L 2E
BRRAF EROREBBERHME
BAR(MRA]) LT RARIZE
2R A 8 A& Astrotech Group Limited
([Astrotech ) (KRR EBHB RIS
MK AE])  FHARRA6675%
ZHER o Astrotech Bl —REBI A ¥R
E RN ST 7 b ([ A STB ) 2 B
B mBEfARREE DA (TR ])
BREEERNET K RBARE 2 &K
BERAT o RfE R NG AR E
ARHME([FRE K2 AT

ARFEMPERBUREBEIELE
WEKBERANF R ARER -

ARARZNREERARE MG H
BHRERAABTEN - EFRR/ART
RRRAT - RIDRBERATER - AKX
BAREERENEL  BTRAMARE
25 EH

A= HAUFE
For the year ended 3| December 2012

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Its immediate holding company is Astrotech
Group Limited (“Astrotech”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands which holds 66.75% interest in the Company. Astrotech
is wholly owned by China Academy of Launch Vehicle Technology
("CALT"), a state-owned enterprise. China Aerospace Science &
Technology Corporation (“CASC") is the ultimate holding company of
the Company via the immediate shareholding of CALT. Both CASC and
CALT are companies established in the People's Republic of China (the
“PRC™).

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the corporate information to the annual
report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB") while the
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$"). The directors consider that HK$ is the appropriate presentation
currency since the Company is a public company with the shares listed
on the Stock Exchange where most of its investors are located.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA™).

Amendments to HKAS |2 Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying
assets; and
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures —

Transfers of financial assets.

Except as described below, the application of the amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group's
financial performance and positions for the current and prior years and/

or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax: Recovery of

underlying assets

The Group has applied for the first time the amendments to HKAS 12
"Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets” in the current year. Under
the amendments, investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model in accordance with HKAS 40 “Investment property”
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale for the purposes of
measuring deferred taxes, unless the presumption is rebutted in certain

circumstances.

The Group measures its investment property using the fair value model.
As a result of the application of the amendments to HKAS 12, the
directors reviewed the Group's investment property and concluded
that the Group's investment property is held under a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over use, rather than through sale.
Therefore, the directors have determined that the ‘sale’ presumption
set out in the amendments to HKAS 2 is rebutted. The application of
the amendments to HKAS 12 in the current year has no financial impact
to the Group.
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For the year ended 3| December 20/2
APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS”’) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs

that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Al

BAVBREER BEMBREER
CHES) —TTHhEERE
—E——FRH
ZEENE
BAVBREEN HEEE-HH
7 (BETAR) EMEER
SREE
BAMBREER BENBRELER
FIRREE F 9%zt
B 75 R 5 22 A ERBAHRBE
EWEACCHIFN) e
BRMBREEL GREMB®RE
FI10% - BA BERHRER
B 75 R 22 A REMEE
FIIERES R  RE
B 75 s o5 22 A 3l
£ 125 (BETA)
BRMBMEER REEE?
F 0% - BB
gy el
FNHEEES
BETEAE 7R
(1BFTA)
HRMBHRELEN S@MIAS
FIH
BRMBHREEN REBMBEHRE
F 105

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS I'l'and HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2009 - 201 | cycle

Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities'
Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9

and transition disclosures®

Consolidated financial statements, joint
arrangements and disclosure of
interests in other entities:

Transition guidance'

Investment entities?

Financial instruments’

Consolidated financial statements'
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS’) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

(Continued)

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 19 (as revised in 201 1)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 201 1)

HKAS 28 (as revised in 201 1)

Amendments to HKAS |

Amendments to HKAS 32

HK(IFRIC) - INT 20

Joint arrangements'

Disclosure of interests in other entities'

Fair value measurement!

Employee benefits!

Separate financial statements'

Investments in associates

and joint ventures'

Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income*

Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities®

Stripping costs in the production

phase of a surface mine'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 201 3.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2014.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2015.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 2012.
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For the year ended 3| December 2012

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS’’) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs on consolidation, joint

arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued, including HKFRS 10,
HKFRS |1, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in 201 1) and HKAS 28 (as
revised in 201 1.

Key requirements of these five standards are described below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated and separate
financial statements” that deal with consolidated financial statements.
HK(SIC) - INT 12 “Consolidation — Special purpose entities” will be
withdrawn upon the effective date of HKFRS 10. Under HKFRS [0, there
is only one basis for consolidation, that is, control. In addition, HKFRS
[0 includes a new definition of control that contains three elements:
(a) power over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returmns
from its involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor's returns.
Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to deal with complex

scenarios.

CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
Annual Report 2012

71



72

aN=pup e e N
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—F——F1-A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

2.

FER ] R EETE B
HREEL ( [FEMHBHRE
A1) &

FHGERE - SERH BEATR
BEZHTIREETEEMBREEL
(%)

BEEMBRELERE | SRR EFESF
ERFE3IFIRAELE 2 EE BB
MBHERERE | SKATARMEZRA L
EEEAKREE A ETHENE
NE - BERBEHREE -REF I3
SIAREZEHER-SEHRI TR
HEIRRBBMBERELERSE 5L
BERHE REFEMERELS
5 AEZHDBERAERBHSE
bR AERTEINZEILH T 2H#
MEBEMETE - ARk - REFL G
RRIE3IR - RLERED R=EH
HAZHER ARZEHEERKARE
BT - WO REBEMBREER
FIIY AECRBRABSEIEA
B EREBEEBGEREIR  AF
THERA KBRS SEILIIRE
ZYN:

BEEMBREENE 125 A AREE
Al BRANEMBAR - 8ERH - B
ERAR/SRGEAREB LT B
B ER -BRBME  TEMBR
HERNE 12RAEBERERRITER
AEEEREME

BEEMBRELERFE 105 BEMBR
HERE I RRBERBHREELE 12
W2 BAARN_E—_FL AEM - A
RERERAZAREERBREENE
AT @RS -

FEMRERER(KE) BRAF
2012 £ 3F

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS’) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs on consolidation, joint

arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continued)

HKFRS | replaces HKAS 31 “Interests in joint ventures”. HKFRS ||
deals with how a joint arrangement of which two or more parties
have joint control should be classified. HK(SIC) - INT 13 “Jointly
controlled entities - Non-monetary contributions by venturers” will
be withdrawn upon the effective date of HKFRS | 1. Under HKFRS
I'l, joint arrangements are classified as joint operations or joint
ventures, depending on the rights and obligations of the parties to the
arrangements. In contrast, under HKAS 31, there are three types of joint
arrangements: jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled assets and
jointly controlled operations. In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS ||
are required to be accounted for using the equity method of accounting,
whereas jointly controlled entities under HKAS 31 can be accounted for

using the equity method of accounting or proportionate consolidation.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that
have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/
or unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the current
standards.

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS |1 and HKFRS 12
were issued to clarify certain transitional guidance on the application of
these five HKFRSs for the first time.
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For the year ended 3| December 2012

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS’’) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs on consolidation, joint

arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continued)

These five standards, together with the amendments relating to the
transitional guidance, are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after | January 2013 with earlier application, permitted provided that all

of these standards are applied early at the same time.

The Directors anticipate that these five standards will be adopted in
the Group's consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning | January 2013. The application of these five standards
may have impact on amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the Directors are in the process of accessing the
impact of the application of these standards and hence have not yet
quantified the extent of the impact.

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements. The
standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair
value, and requires disclosures about fair value measurements. The scope
of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial instrument items and
non-financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs require or permit
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements,
except in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure requirements
in HKFRS |3 are more extensive than those in the current standards.
For example, quantitative and qualitative disclosures based on the three-
level fair value hierarchy currently required for financial instruments only
under HKFRS 7 “Financial instruments: Disclosures” will be extended by

HKFRS 13 to cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS’) (Continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement (Continued)

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January

2013, with earlier application permitted.

The Directors anticipate that HKFRS |3 will be adopted in the Group's
consolidated financial statements for the annual period beginning |
January 2013 and that the application of the new standard may affect
the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and resuft
in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS | Presentation of items of other

comprehensive income

The amendments to HKAS | “Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income” introduce new terminology for the statement
of comprehensive income. Under the amendments to HKAS I, a
‘statement of comprehensive income’ is renamed as a ‘statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income'. The amendments
to HKAS | retain the option to present profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in either a single statement or in two separate
but consecutive statements. However, the amendments to HKAS |
require items of other comprehensive income to be grouped into two
categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same basis -
the amendments do not change the option to present items of other

comprehensive income either before tax or net of tax.

The amendments to HKAS | are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after | July 2012. The presentation of items of
other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly when the

amendments are applied in future accounting periods.
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For the year ended 3| December 2012

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS’’) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS | Presentation of items of other

comprehensive income (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
other new or revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results

and the financial position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for the investment property, which is
measured at fair value, as explained in accounting policies set out below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration

given in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain

benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective date of acquisition and up to the effective

date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are

eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from

the Group's equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling
interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit

balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing

subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is

recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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For the year ended 3| December 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i) derecognises the
assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their
carrying amounts at the date when control is lost, (i) derecognises
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including any components of
other comprehensive income attributable to them), and (iii) recognises
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest, with any resulting difference being
recognised as a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group.
When assets of the subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair
values and the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
directly to retained eamings as specified by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement” or, when applicable, the cost on initial

recognition of an investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as

incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date, except
that:

0 deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and HKAS [9
“Employee benefits” respectively;

. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured
in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment” at the

acquisition date (see the accounting policy below); and

J assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations” are measured in accordance with that

standard.
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For the year ended 3| December 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of
the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or

loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity's net assets in
the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or liabilities. The choice

of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented separately in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of
the cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are

expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently whenever there is indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit, and
then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is

not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of

profit or loss on disposal.
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For the year ended 3| December 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant influence
and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint

control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in
these consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, interests in associates are initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost or
at fair value for interests retained in former subsidiaries upon the Group
losing control and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associates.
When the Group's share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An additional
share of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or

made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as

goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,

after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in associates (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group's investment in an associate, VWWhen necessary, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets” as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount, any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

Upon disposal of an associate that resufts in the Group losing significant
influence over that associate, any retained investment is measured
at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value
on initial recognition as a financial asset in accordance with HKAS 39.
The difference between the previous carrying amount of the associate
attributable to the retained interest and its fair value is included in
the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In
addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the same
basis as would be required if that associate had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or
loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when it loses significant influence

over that associate.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised in the
Group's consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests

in the associate that are not related to the Group.
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For the year ended 3| December 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a separate
entity in which venturers have joint control over the economic activity of

the entity are referred to as jointly controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in jointly
controlled entities are initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the jointly controlled entities. When the Group's share of losses
of a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in that
jointly controlled entity (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the jointly
controlled entity), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments

on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of a jointly controlled entity recognised at the date of acquisition is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of

the investment.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,

after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group's
investment in a jointly controlled entity. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets” as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use
and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount, any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment

subsequently increases.

Upon disposal of a jointly controlled entity that results in the Group
losing joint control over that jointly controlled entity, any retained
investment is measured at fair value at that date and the fair value
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition as a financial asset
in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference between the previous
carrying amount of the jointly controlled entity attributable to the
retained interest and its fair value is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the jointly controlled entity. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that jointly controlled entity on the
same basis as would be required if that jointly controlled entities had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain
or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
jointly controlled entity would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain
or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)

when it loses joint control over that jointly controlled entity.

When a group entity transacts with its jointly controlled entity, profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the jointly controlled
entity are recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the jointly controlled entity that are
not related to the Group.
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For the year ended 3| December 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and

sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered
and title has passed, at which time all the following conditions are
satisfied:

. the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and

rewards of ownership of the goods;

. the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control

over the goods sold;
0 the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

J it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the

transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction

can be measured reliably.

Revenue from sales of electricity are recognised when electricity has

been delivered.
Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts though the expected life of the financial asset to that

asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders'
rights to receive payment have been established (provided that it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the

amount of revenue can be measured reliably).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land (classified as
finance leases) are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount

of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for

capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values using the fair
value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in profit or loss for the period in

which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is

derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated

impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful
life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for

on a prospective basis.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the

period in which it is incurred.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other

than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows

have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable

amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss

is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated

costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing

costs eligible for capitalisation.

Al other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects

neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests
in jointly controlled entities, except where the Group s able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or

part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the

carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets for investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption
is rebutted, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with the above
general principles set out in HKAS [2 (i.e. based on the expected

manner as to how the properties will be recovered).

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when
it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the

accounting for the business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.

All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattemn in which economic benefits
from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which

they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit
of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-
line basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattemn in which economic benefits from the leased asset are

consumed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases, in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of the
lease at the inception of the lease. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the entire
lease is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as

property, plant and equipment.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to

them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognised as a deduction from the carrying amount of the
relevant asset in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the
useful lives of the related assets. Government grants that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they become receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service

entitling them to the contributions.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a party to

the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,

on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial asset. The accounting policies adopted in
respect of loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial asset are

set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and recelvables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, amounts due from jointly controlled entities,
amounts due from associates, bank balances and cash and pledged
bank deposits) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on

impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments. The
Group designated the investment in the shares of a listed entity as an

available-for-sale financial asset on initial recognition of those items.

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as available-for-sale
financial assets and are traded in an active market are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the fair value of
available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of asset revaluation reserve.
When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting

policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is
established.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the

estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered

to be objective evidence of impairment.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

J significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or

principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets
that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past the average credit period of 90 days, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with

default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows

discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, amounts due from jointly controlled entities and amounts
due from associates, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When trade
receivables are considered uncollectible, they are written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously

written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period in which the

impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not be
reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised directly in other comprehensive

income and accumulated in asset revaluation reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the

definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in

the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amounts due to
associates and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,

using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise
the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a

collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirely, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised directly in other comprehensive income is recognised in

profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and

the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will be required
to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount
is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time

value of the money is material).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are

not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in which
case, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in other

comprehensive income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the group entities which are stated at
functional currency of the respective group entity other than Hong
Kong dollars are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of
the reporting period, and their income and expenses are translated at
the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange reserve (attributed

to non-controlling interest as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group's
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of joint control over a jointly controlled entity that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit
or loss. In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
or jointly controlled entities that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control), the proportionate share of the

accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Additionally, on disposal of group entities which has the same functional
currency as the Company, the exchange differences arising on translation

to presentation currency are transferred directly to accumulated losses.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY AND JUDGMENT

The key assumption concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty and judgment at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial period,

are discussed below.

Estimated impairment of jointly controlled entities

Determining impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss recognised
in respect of interests in jointly controlled entities require estimation
of their recoverable amounts. The recoverable amount is determined
from value in use calculation by estimating the Group's share of the
present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be
generated by the jointly controlled entities, using discount rates which
reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risk specific to the jointly controlled entities. During the year, a reversal
of impairment loss of HK$89,000,000 (201 I: nil) was recognised. The
jointly controlled entity has recorded an increase in sales orders and has
showed continuous improvement in profit making for the past few years.
The actual sales and gross margin are higher than the budgeted sales and
gross margin of the jointly controlled entity for the past few years. As
a result, the profit has improved and the recoverable amount has also
increased. Details of the recoverable amount calculation and reversal
of impairment loss are disclosed in note 20. As at 3| December
2012, the carrying amounts of interests in jointly controlled entities
after the reversal of impairment loss are HK$1,416,222,000 (201 I:
HK$1,272,882,000).

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 3| December 2012, the carrying
amount of goodwill is HK$2,004,000 (201 I: HK$4,903,000). Details of

the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 7.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY AND JUDGMENT (Continued)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment in

wind energy related products segment

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
represents the higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell. The
value in use is calculated by estimating the future cash flows expected
to be generated by the assets based on a 5-year budget approved by
the management at a discount rate of [6.1%, which reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to
the operation of the assets. Taking into account the value in use of the
assets, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, no impairment
is considered necessary. As at 3| December 2012, the carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment in wind energy related products
segment is HK$312,881,000 (31 December 201 |: HK$322,888,000)

and no impairment loss is recognised.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
As at 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of trade receivables
is HK$493,668,000 (201 I: HK$169,502,000), net of allowance for
doubtful debts of HK$65,687,000 (201 I: HK$70,143,000).
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5. EEH 5. TURNOVER
REBNAEENLLBONMT : An analysis of the Group's turnover for the year is as follows:
2012 201 |
HK$’000 HK$000
B miHE Sales of goods 225,765 181,077
HERBRSEZLZEN Sales of electricity from operation
of wind power field 29,428 28,423
HERNEEHBEER Sales of wind energy related products 734,692 196,785
989,885 406,285
6. SHEAH 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION
MARTEZG(AMEIBLERARE)R Information reported to the Group's Executive Directors, being the
H2ER  BRAURNEYSIEER chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation
BeRBIADEBIE EMOERER and assessment of segment performance focuses on types of goods or
Wl D HES - EREAEERNRE services delivered or provided. No operating segments identified by the
DER - TEEBRARELTESLRNHE chief operating decision maker have been aggregated in arriving at the
HREDBES - reportable segments of the Group.
ARME  AEEREEEMKREE Specifically, the Group’s operating and reportable segments under
AIFsF e RMEDEMT ¢ HKFRS 8 are as follows:
EWaka - RERNEBHEBEE Wind Energy Related Products — Manufacture and sales of wind
MEREm mZ BEREE energy related products
[R5:E & - HERERSGELZ Operation of Wind Farm — Sales of electricity from operation
%Ejj of wind power field
MrEMER — HERDHEARKE REPM Products — Manufacture and distribution of
% elevator motors
MHE S — EIMHES Trading of Materials — Trading of chemical materials
EAEH - % HERDHEBE Telecommunication Business ~— Development, manufacture and
AER BREIBE distribution of communication
BER BERA products, ITS, broadband
BN e systems, equipment and
accessories
TXEHRE@ZENELER - Information regarding these segments is presented below.

104 HEMAERER(EE) AR A
2012 &£ #f
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's turnover and results by

operating and reportable segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2012

EN%E
RBER B5EE #t EEE S
Wind Energy Operation EHER HHES Tele-
Related of Wind REPM Trading of communication &8
Products Farm Products Materials Business  Consolidated

TR FEL FEL FEL FEL FEL
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000

g1E TURNOVER
HWEE External sales 134,692 29,428 31,264 166,792 21,109 989,885
S | RESULT
PR Segment result (116,179) 22,641 139 31 (3,806) (96,294)
ABARLAER Unallocated corporate expenses (71,837)
AEAREMUA Unallocated other income 1,792
BBRA Finance costs (88,011
FEff R Share of results of jintly controlled

EEZE-FESEHH  entities- unallocated portion 168,704
BER LRI Reversal of impaiment loss recognised

BEEREAAESE  nrespectofinterestina

jointly controlled entity 89,000

RHAEH Profit before taxation 13,354
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6. NEEH #

SEWMBREER (£)
BE-E2——F+t-A=+—-HLHFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 201 |

BN%E
RBER EAEE fit EREH
Wind Energy Operation ERER HBES Tele-
Related of Wind REPM Trading of communication 58
Products Farm Products Materials Business  Consolidated
FAT FAT FAT FAT AT AL
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
EXE TURNOVER
HMEE Extemal sales 196,785 843 18953 106,768 4535 406,285
S RESULT
HRxE Segment result (58234) 39026 (13839) 74 (7426) (39.74)
AMEPRAFER Unallocated corporate expenses (46,101)
RESREMBA Unallocated other income 9,085
BRA Finance costs (62013)
REMFATEEM Increase in far value of investment property 5640
EiAREHERRE Share of results of jintly controlled
-AEREHA entities - unallocated portion 146358
Bitanan Proft before taxation 13223

DEEEES D ERNSELENGRE A
HAMKER  TREMBKAE  REY
ENTFERGREARTNEEER
FEBBEE - KD 2 EEERE
%%%%ﬁ'u&%W“MEmWA&
AEABRARNER  MEBTERAK
E%%ﬁ o FE(REEE N ADEF 16,896,000
BIL(ZZ——%F : 15,689,000 70) & JE
1k 2E [ 2 1 B 88 )% 713340008 T (=
——F : E{HEB5450008 )0 EE
BEDE - WIHIRERSER D BEX
FEME  AAKERTEEZWMAOE

=

s °

106 TEMABRER(KE) FRAF
2012 £ 3F

Segment results represent the profit or loss before taxation eamed or
incurred by each segment, excluding finance costs, fair value gain on
investment property, reversal of impairment loss in respect of interest
in a jointly controlled entity, share of results of jointly controlled entities
which cannot be allocated, unallocated other income and corporate
expenses such as central administration costs and directors’ salaries.
Share of profit of associates of HK$ 16,896,000 (201 1: HK$15,689,000)
and share of profit of jointly controlled entities of HK$334,000 (201 I:
share of loss HK$545,000) were allocated to reportable segments.
This is the measure reported to the Group's Executive Directors
for the purpose of resources allocation and assessment of segment

performance.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by

reportable segment.

At 31 December 2012

BHRE
HEER B5EE i ERES
Wind Energy Operation EdER HHES Tele-
Related of Wind REPM Trading of communication &4
Products Farm Products Materials Business  Consolidated
FiEr FiEr FiEr FiEr FiEr FiEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
HEAE Segment assets 1,872,433 613,956 31,898 31,200 51,119 2,607,266
RERRSIEE B Interests in jointly controlled entities 1,347,929
AEARAREE Unallocated corporate assets 606,406
GRAELE Consolidated total assets 4,561,601
8f LIABILITIES
HEaR Segment liabltes 1,232,380 88,370 11,360 6,050 24997 1,363,157
AEARLAARE Unallocated corporate liabities 1,217,251
GREREEE Consolidated total liabilties 1,580,408
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

6. HBE » 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
NESEREE (£) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)
R=-B——F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 201 |

BIEE
RBER B5EE i EMER
WindEnergy ~ Operation BHER HHES Tele-
Related of Wind REPM Trading of communication &a
Products Farm Products Materials Business  Consolidated
FAT FAL FAL TEr AT AT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BE ASSETS
NEAE Segrment asses 1 487,141 581491 408 3411 54359 2168610
RERBHEEZBR Interests in jointly controlled entities 1202977
AARDAEE Unallocated corporate assets 479871
GFRAESE Consolidated total assets 3851458
& LIABILITIES
HEEE Segment liabilties 878,786 86962 13810 7764 5173 1012495
AEARAREE Unalocated corporate fablties 954572
FRAREE Consolidated total liabities 1,967,067

REERNBEREOENBRER

o BRAADENRAFEGER
@ WEME - EH Hj’%%ﬁﬂiéf?
FEMEBEE(FEMRTER
FRBREEK)  MBEEEHD HEE
&%%iﬁ Fﬁighz[‘ﬁ?wﬁﬂ
ZHAD e K

o BIUSRZETEERETHE
Ao FAREARERE S

108 TEMABRER(KE) FRAF
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For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and allocating

resources between segments:

. all assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
interests in jointly controlled entities which cannot be allocated,
investment property, available-for-sale financial asset and other
financial assets that comprise mainly bank balances and cash.
Goodwill is allocated to reportable segments as described in note
|7; and

J all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than
certain borrowings which cannot be allocated and deferred tax

liabilities.
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inrespect of inventories
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Other segment information

At 31 December 2012

ENEE
BEER
Wind Energy
Related
Products
-2

HK$ 000

70,886
16,898

45

2,899

5
75,200
15,460

2308

6,349

ks H
Operation
of Wind
Farm
fér
HKS$ 000

PARY
12,756

3247765
52,833
14571

(6015)

Bt
B#ER
REPM
Products
iz
HKS 000

4
1,856

5,018

1,058

HRES
Trading of
Materials
7AT
HKS 000

R E——Ff = —HILFE

For the year ended 3| December 20/2

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

ERER

Tele-
communication
Business

FAT

HKS 000

889
3,4

AELR B
Unallocated ~ Consolidated
FAL FAT
HKS 000 HK$000
9 13,994

20 3,844

- 45

- 5018

- 1,058

- 2899

4 9

- 399,975
1,347,929 1,416,222
- 16,89
168,704 69,038
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

6. DELEE 2 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continved)
HipymEss (&) Other segment information (Continued)
R-B——F+=-HA=+—8 At 31 December 201 |

Ar%E
HBER A5EE i LR
WindEnergy ~ Operation EHER 1HHES Tele-
Related of Wind REPM  Tradingof communication AR &4
Products Farm Products Materials Business ~ Unallocated  Consolidated

7T 7T TET 7T 7T 7T 7T
HS SO0 HS0 HS SO0 SO S0

BEEEATENS Amounts induded in the mezsure of segment
FRAAHER 8 proft o loss o segment aseets:
0% BRRREAE Additon of property,plnt and equipment 94468 TH 3% = i 6 %540
0% BRRARTE Depreciation of property,plant and equipment 13176 DES] 1785 = 299 i 3093
EIRBEARUGZRERE Impamentloss recogised nrespect of rade receivebles = = 9653 = i = 10381
ETBBEEZEERE  Inpamentloss recognised i respectof mventores - = = - 1479 _ 149
RENZE FRERAGEE  Lossondsposal of property, lnt and equpment 19 5 - 5%) - 5%
NBERR G Iterests i assodtes 718 K] = = 1743 = 370566
RAERHER R Iterest n jonty controlled entes 8965 81,040 = = = 1200977 1272882
B E 0 (BE) AT Share of loss) proft of assocites (1571) 2029 = = (303) = 15,689
EEAREHER(BE)EH  Shere of o) poft ofjointly conrolled eites (6347 580 - - - 146358 145813
HhE 58 Geographical information
AREZEBURNEERPEZ Hfhih The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and other regions of
[ e the PRC.
() AEBREBIMMEFPZEXEFE (i) The Group's revenue from external customers are detailed
mr below:
2012 2011
FET 87T
HK$’000 HK$000
B 3 Other regions of the PRC 967,707 378,153
BB Hong Kong 20,949 4630
EH United States of America 91 16,250
HAth Others 1,138 7252
989,885 406,285

110 THEMXSRER(KE) FRAF
2012 £ 3F



6.

e SRR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PEEHE @)

B E—CF A= HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2012

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

WENE Geographical information (Continued)
iy BREEBBUNESBHNALEFE (i) Information about the Group's non-current assets (excluding
RBEECRIAKRINBEBH financial instruments) by geographical location of the assets are
BRFEOT : detailed below:
FRBEEREE
Carrying amount
of non-current assets
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
Fh B fth it [ Other regions of the PRC 2,449,457 2,219,715
N Hong Kong 3,569 4535
2,453,026 2,224,250
FHEEEFREH

BREAASEERE 0%MEF R
EFEEXENT -

Information about major customers

Revenues from customers of the corresponding years contributing over
10% of the total sales of the Group are as follows:

2012 2011

FET FHET

HK$’000 HK$000

HEA Customer A ! 391,047 N/A?
EFB! Customer B ' 196,548 N/A?
BEC Customer C 2 166,792 106,768

| ROZEHEEREESR
MHESEERE
RS EEEAEE G E LT AR
RiEBBI0% - At - HERFHE
ANER (NA]) -

I Revenue from Wind Energy Related Products
Revenue from Trading of Materials
The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total
sales of the Group, thus, disclosure for the specific customers is not
applicable (“N/A™).

CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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BE—F——F1-A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

7. HugA

Hi g A B -

BREREHIMA
BISHBh (K1t 1)
HE KA
FEHA
- RITHER
- RTHAREFHERZBR
HA A
- WEMEREIRE WS (AT 2)

7. OTHER INCOME

Other income comprises:

Clean Development Mechanism income
Government grants (Note /)
Rental income
Interest income

— bank balances

— advance to jointly controlled entities
Other income

— gain on disposal of a property

development project (Note 2)

2012
FET
HK$’000

5,256
2,669
1,483

3,170
7,137

23,280

2011
TET
HK$000

5,638
2,152
443

3,464
7014

& #502000%8 w(=Z T — — F:
240,000/ 7T ) 6 BB,/ g st g
EYE BERSENETAEEZ
FEN(HTZE31) - R T £ 582,167,000 74
JT(ZZT——%F : 19120008 7T)EH
R BEIEEE 2L ERR R o

2. FARA AEEREEABLERE
FEE A 11,626,000 T K 1) % 5 B
BEEFT—%2F=1H BHekEHB
36,998,0007% 7t o B It BT 2 A B M
3 /523,280,000 7 7T (4 N B R 5 Bk A
2,092,00087T) °

FEMRERER(KE) BRAF
2012 £ 3F

Note:

An amount of HK$502,000 (201 I: HK$240,000) represents subsidies
granted to the Group by the PRC government/authorities for the

purpose of financing the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
(note 31). The remaining amount of HK$2,167,000 (201 I: HK$1,912,000)

represents subsidies received from the PRC tax authorities on Value

Added Tax reduction.

2. During the year, the Group disposed of its property development project
with a net asset value of HK$ | 1,626,000 at the date of disposal to a third
party for a cash consideration of HK$36,998,000. A gain on disposal of
HK$23,280,000 (net of transaction cost of HK$2,092,000) is resulted.
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B E—CF A= HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 20/2

Hibl s R iEsiE 8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES
2012 201 |
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$000
BB A R I Gain on disposal of interests in associates 11,802 5517
HREME SR 2 HERR Impairment loss recognised in
respect of trade receivables (45) (10,381)
WEIBRE 5 EA 2 R ERER Recovery of impairment loss in
respect of trade receivables 5,018 =
HRERREZRESR Impairment loss recognised in
respect of goodwill (2,899) =
BB A AU e 2 AR E e OR Recovery of fully impaired
receivable from an associate - 1223
HEME  BERZHF Wz (BE)  Gain (loss) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 9 (587)
EHERE e (B18) #8 Net exchange gain (loss) recognised 1,075 (834)
14,960 (5062)
AR A 9. FINANCE COSTS
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
RITREMERFEZ L Interest on bank and other loans:
—ARTFNEHER — wholly repayable within five years 82,732 57,207
—TRRAFANTHER — not wholly repayable within five years 5,279 4,806
88,011 62,013

CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 113
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—F——F1-A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

10. g

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

2012 2011
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
BATRM BRI TH|SIEEES ©  Profit before taxation has been
arrived at after charging:
E=M< Directors’ emoluments 5,849 5,860
HE THRA Other staff costs 79,465 42,244
Hitvle B RIKTEFIFT B R Other staff's retirement benefits
scheme contributions 9,863 4,778
95,177 52,882
ZE A & Auditor's remuneration 3,000 3,000
B EEEH Amortisation of intangible assets 12,330 1,996
BRBFMXZFEKRA Cost of inventories recognised as an
(BIEREFERMR 1,058,000 T expense (including allowance for
(ZZ——4% : | 479,000787T)) obsolete inventories of HK$ 1,058,000
(201 1: HK$1,479,000)) 992,706 356,182
ME  BERREINE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 33,844 30,923
B REEEMLzeE Less: Amounts capitalised in inventories (4,401) (2,988)
29,443 27935
R RETZEEHD Minimum lease payments
X &ERE under operating leases
in respect of land and buildings 11,835 6,08
HEF Research and development expenses 1,646 7,728

FEMRERER(KE) BRAF
2012 £ 3F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A= HAUFE
For the year ended 3| December 2012

1. $IE 1. TAXATION

2012 2011
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000

AEEHREXHBLRE Tax charge for the year comprises:
FEBRAEH PRC Enterprise Income Tax 71,479 9,103
EFER A > H (B 5E 30) Deferred tax charge (Note 30) 454 2215
7,933 1318

ARE R IR BB AR M 2 H iRk

The reconciliation of tax charge for the year to the profit before taxation

T : is as follows:
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
B A1 Ve A Profit before taxation 13,354 13223
BRPBEMERERTE25% 2 Tax charge at PRC Enterprise Income
BELH(ZT—F : 25%) Tax rate of 25% (201 1: 25%) 3,338 3,306
EEEE R R RAREHEREE Share of results of associates and
jointly controlled entities (46,484) (40,376)
ARB IR NBAX 2 BBTE Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose 5,086 8,755
RCHER AR RS ZE 2 Tax effect of deductible
BB E temporary differences not recognised 14,445 5,685
AHRBIERBMNBAZ BT E Tax effect of income not taxable for
tax purpose (26,958) (4,842
REERBRE BT E Tax effect of losses not recognised 57,449 26,972
BALAARLHERZ HIEER Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised @) 3)
AEHERE BB A Tax effect of temporary differences
HANER R BB E attributable to undistributed profits
of PRC subsidiaries 1,064 2,986
FEEM R ERRE S XBH Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
MEBARZ T TRARETYE operating in other jurisdictions - 9,776
BRYHE—EHERAR Effect of tax concessions/exemptions
RBER e se granted to a subsidiary in the PRC — (941)
AEEHEX Tax charge for the year 7,933 11,318
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

. A &) Il. TAXATION (Continued)

HRAAEERAMERNTEELEBREE No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Group
BB ZERBUEN - A REIREF AT has no assessable profit arising in or derived from Hong Kong for both
B o years.
BETREARENBLEMERE( D Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income
EREHE RO EFMER EE M Tax (the “EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
B "EMBARIZHER -_T——& the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% in 201 | and 2012, except
T ——FA525%  EART —RH for one of the Company's PRC subsidiaries, who was exempted from
BB ARRKRI  ZARE TS +F PRC income tax for two years starting from year 2007, which was its
(BB EENEE ) ERMEER R first profit-making year, followed by a 50% reduction for the next three
B YR BEE-_ZE—F+=A years ended 31 December 201 |.

=T —BIE=FERR50%

116 THEMXSRER(KE) FRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. EF - R RESNE

(a) ESRER
BERKERN(ZE——F : N1

EERBEHEEZMEIOT

B E—CF A= HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 20/2

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors and chief executive

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine (201 I: nine)

directors and the chief executive were as follows:

012 yull
Hhde Efthe
Other emoluments Other emoluments
B4R BB §eR R
AttEH B 5 el B
Salaries  Retirement Salanes Retirement
#i  andother benefits scheme it fig adother  beneft scheme )
fE4:3] Name of director Fees benefits  contributions Total Fees benefs  contrbutions Totd
74 FET -2 b2 A1 TAT FAT 74T
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 Hs00 HSO Hs0 HS000
B Han Shuwang - 1,656 - 1,656 = | 66! = | 66!
18R Wang Xiaodong - 1,490 14 1,504 = 1 495 12 1,507
35 Li Guang Note) - 1018 - 1018 = - - -
fE Zang Wef* - m - m = 1246 = 1246
Tz Wang Lijun - 994 - 994 = 9% = 9%
it Fag il - - - - - - - -
i Zhang Janhue®™ - - - - = = = =
i Wang Dechen 150 - - 150 150 = = 150
BER Kan Lai Kuen, Alce 150 - - 150 10 - - 150
RER Gordon Ng 150 - - 50 150 = = 150
450 5,385 14 5,849 40 53% 12 5860
Gz Name of the chief executive
) Li Guang Nore) - 1018 - 1018 - - - -

CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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BE—F——F1-A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

12. B - BHEREEME =

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

) EEREFK (&) (@) Directors and chief executive (Continued)
BMELHITMNESRNEE_Z Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived any
——F+-_RA=t+—HE=-_ZT—— emoluments in the years ended 3| December 2012 and 3|
FE+ZA=+—HIFERERM December 201 |.

B o

& ZEEEREBEE_Z——-F @ The director resigned during the year ended 31 December 2012.
TZRA=T—HIEFAEE- The director is not compensated from the loss of office.
EETERGHBMHE-

o REERBE_T 1= **  The director is newly appointed during the year ended 31
A=+—BILFRFERE - December 2012.

Wik ZRAARGIvESHFBE Note: Li Guang is both director and chief executive officer of the
ENFEEME R ERIERSZ Company and his emoluments disclosed above include those for
BATIRERS 2B S - services rendered by him as the chief executive officer.

(b) AfiRSHMERANL (b) Five highest paid individuals
AR S EMER A T2 MAL The five highest paid individuals included four (201 I: four)
(—Z——F : 1) EZF o ML directors. Among the four directors, one is the chief executive
Exd . —UATEHRTER-H director. The emoluments of the remaining one (2011: one)
BT ——F: —()BS highest paid individuals were as follows:

FHERALZHMEMT

2012 2011

FET TET

HK$’000 HK$000

e LEMRER Salaries and other benefits 994 996

MEALMF L —f(ZF——
F—f)BRSHEHENALZE
F RGBT B 1,000,000 87T ©

118 THEMXSRER(KE) FRAF
2012 £ 3F

The aggregate emoluments paid to the above one (201 I:
one) highest paid individuals for both years did not exceed
HK$1,000,000.



13.

14.

e SRR
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45

HE_Z—-—F+_A=+—HLHF
B - A% B R 5 o B R B AR
B BREPZAEURTERZREMT
MRE(ZE—F : &) -

BREH-EF

ARBHEAANEIEZBRERERN IR
RTFIBIEEE -

B E—CF A= HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2012

13. DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 3| December
2012, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the
reporting period (201 I: Nil).

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC

The calculation of the basic eamings per share attributable to owners of
the Company is based on the following data.

2012 2011
FET FHT
HKS$’000 HK$ 000
AT EBRERRN 2 BH Earnings for the purpose of basic
earnings per share 26,598 [1,472
BHEE
Number of shares

2012 2011

REAEGREARBHZRMNEE  Number of shares for the purposes
of basic eamings per share 3,968,995,668 3,968,995,668

ARMERGECRITEEERRD
R & 2 5 G EE AT o

No diluted earnings per share has been presented as there were no
potential ordinary shares outstanding for both years.
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BE—F——F1-A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

15. REME

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

2012 201 |
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
NEE FAIR VALUE

REA] At beginning of the year 37,680 30972
BE 34, 3 B Exchange adjustment 1,045 1,068

ERBRHER N FEEM Increase in fair value recognised
in profit or loss —_ 5,640
RE At end of the year 38,725 37,680

LR BREFREENRENEL
R BRI -

AEEREMER-_Z—Z_F+_H
S+ —RZAFECHARRERE
Eo MARAEFTETZABMEEIR
SERBRRNEURRYE AT S
{BIRIEIEL -

AEER-_F——F+-_A=1+—HZ
REMEAFEREAGETEREL
BUAREBRBEXMGERMIY AT
RABNREBETAE o R BFET
BERLRIABEMASEE - ZIBME
REERERYBUBRANEZTIHR
SERREIEL -

AEERBEERHS RS KEHER
BRFEERZERNZ A MERER
B ATEEAGE  FDRREDE
WABEMEAS ©

HEMAERER(EE) AR A
2012 &£ #f

The above investment property is located in Shenzhen, the PRC under

medium lease term.

The fair value of the Group's investment property at 3|1 December
2012 has been determined by the directors of the Company. The
valuation performed by the directors of the Company was arrived at by
reference to recent market prices for similar commercial properties in
Shenzhen, the PRC.

The fair value of the Group's investment property at 31 December
2011 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on that
date by Knight Frank Petty Limited, independent qualified professional
valuers not connected with the Group. Knight Frank Petty Limited
is a member of the Institute of Valuers. The valuation was arrived
at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar

commercial properties in Shenzhen, the PRC.

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as investment

properties.
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B E—CF A= HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 20/2

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BE Rf BA%E
HELH R#®  BERRE RAR AR
kg Plant, Wind IR HOEREB

Leasehold  equipment energy Moulds  Furniture bt

land and and  plantand and  and office Motor ]

buildings ~ machinery  equipment tools  equipment vehicles Total

7&T T2 &L 7ET AT AT &L

HSOW  HKSOD  HKSOD MDD HKSOD HKSODO SO
S cosT
WZF——F-A-B  Atljauay 20| 12693 09%| 351,894 19378 B49 14522 444917
B AR Prchange adjustment 483 813 12730 654 176 414 15270
AE Addtions 257 % 85,269 3673 2165 2805 96,540
e Disposals — - (1330) “) (806) (1022) (3207
HEMBARRIERR  Derecognised on disposal o a subsidary - — - — (746) - (746)
W_E——% At 31 December 2011
+ZA=1-H 15948 283 448563 D45 17322 16739 546058
B A uchange adjustment 3 65 11503 645 170 gl 13695
AE Addtions 9207 yij] 38515 1,160 208 2847 7399
nj 5 Disposdls - - (907) - (469) - (1376)
WZE-2% At 31 December 2012
+ZA=1-H 4557 U719 497674 2546| 19051 19929 632371
& DEPRECIATION
RZE——F-A-B  Atljmuay20l] 1438 10039 391 4884 15,560 6,146 71,258
[E AR Exchange adjustment 8 367 1740 |54 80 132 256
RERTE Provided for the year 807 3989 19023 3270 1971 1863 30923
HER Fliminated on disposls - - %4) (#4) (540) (624) (1322)
HEMBARRMRE  Himinated on disposal of a subsidiary - - - — (746) - (746)
RZE—F At 31 December 201 |
+-R=1-A 23% 14395 53860 8264 9589 7507 95959
B A Bxchange adjustment 4 3% 559 27 8 102 1341
KERk Provided for the year 8l 2885 21,169 4201 208 2455 33844
HER R Eiminated on disposdls = = ®) = (63) = (15)
R-F-—% At 31 December 2012
tZA=1-H 3189 17670 75495 12682 11678 10074 130988
Kk CARRYING VALUES
W-E-2% At 31 December 2012
t-A=1+-H 02348 7049 min 12779 AL 9855 501,383
RZE—F At 31 December 201 |
+-R=1-A 13614 943 394703 15392 73 90 45009
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BEZ—F——F1-H=1—HUIFE

16.

M¥ BERRE o

LREMNE - BERRBZEDNE
BERU T EEHTE -

MELi 3-5%k AR EF
KkEgF - BEEAE

BE  RERER  9-15%

BOZEREREE 5>15%

BARTE 25%
RERBAERE  10-25%
i 18-25%

AGE LR ZMERSANTEFEF
HRA -

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a

straight line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings 3 - 5% or over the unexpired lease terms,

whichever is shorter

Plant, equipment and machinery 9-15%
Wind energy plant and equipment 5-15%
Moulds and tools 25%
Fumniture and office equipment 10-25%
Motor vehicles 18 -25%

The Group's property interests shown above were held under medium-

term leases in the PRC.

e 17. GOODWILL
TET
HK$000
B AR COST
R_E—F—fA—H R-_ZT—F At | January 201 1, 31 December 201 |
+-RA=+—HK and 3| December 2012
—ET——F+-A=+—H 15,397
AE IMPAIRMENT
R-ZZ—F—-A—BR At | January 201 | and 31 December 201 |
W=B——%+=A=+-H 10494
FARRRERRE Impairment loss recognised during the year 2,899
RZE——F+=A=+—H At 3| December 2012 13,393
RREE CARRYING VALUES
RZB——F+-_A=+—8H At 31 December 2012 2,004
RZZE—F+=-_A=+—H At 3| December 201 | 4903

FEMRERER(KE) BRAF
2012 £ 3F
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17. &E8 »)

FREARNE  BECHIEERSE
ENBEzANRCELEMN([REE
HBAD) TIARZTE—ZF+=
A=t Ao REZEENNEERE
A

A= HAUFE
For the year ended 3| December 2012

17. GOODWILL (Continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to
the individual cash generating unit (“CGU") of the Operation of Wind
Farm segment. The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 December

2012 allocated to the unit is as follows:

2012 2011

FET TR

HK$’000 HK$ 000

R5EE Operation of Wind Farm 2,004 2,004
BN E B Em Wind Energy Related Products — 2,899
2,004 4903

RAEE AEEFRRBEFEREIL
AMABRE#EREEAR(ILRM
AEREEZEE 2899,0008 miEE
BRE  RAREEAMABRAENE
52 1 T8 HA 0 12 3 728 5 (B 75 2R SR 4G

Nz
Mgk o

AEBFANSI BT BEEERIN A
PRFHKEEMS L 2RSS REEA
RAELE - H B R T 720040008 7T
ZRME - MBI R A SR B 2 fh
e REGEE AR EI1431%(ZF
——F  133%) Rt E - URBEEE
BEKASELEMNGERR 2REM
marh o BEEREEMNZERELE
A B BB TS ERRHRERAL
B S5

Goodwill of HK$2,899,000 arising from the acquisition of Beijing CASC
Energine Wind Turbine Co,, Ltd. (“Beijing CASC") in the prior years was
fully impaired in the current year as Beijing CASC has become inactive
and no future economic benefits are expected to be generated to the

Group.

The Group performed impairment review for the remaining goodwill
of HK$2,004,000 based on cash flow forecast derived from the financial
budget covering a period of 5 years, which was prepared by using the
most recent financial results with projections approved by management
at discount rate of 14.31% (201 1: 13.3%) for Operation of Wind Farm,
which reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the CGU. Management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable
amount.
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BE—F——F1-A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

18. B EE

18. INTANGIBLE ASSET

Al B 2 RAERTI®
Technical Licence wmE
know-how rights Total
FET FET FHET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
B COST
R-Z——F—F—H As at | January 201 | — — —
NE Additions 71838 — 71,838
RZE——F+=ZA=+—H At 3l December 201 | 71838 = 71,838
BE i, S B Exchange realignment 1991 — 1991
NE Additions 2,632 6,696 9,328
RZT——F+=-A=+—H At 3l December 2012 76,461 6,696 83,157
By AMORTISATION
R-_E——F—HA—H As at | January 201 | — = =
FRAZM Charge for the year 1996 — 1,996
RZZ——F+ZA=+—H At3l December 20! 1996 — 1,996
b 30 8B Exchange realignment 55 — 55
FAXH Charge for the year 12,330 — 12,330
RZZT——F+=-A=+—H At 3l December 2012 14,381 — 14,381
HREE CARRYING VALUES
P —ZF+ZA=+—H At 3l December 2012 62,080 6,696 68,776
RZF——F+=A=+—H At3] December 201 | 69,842 — 69,842

FEMRERER(KE) BRAF
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18. BILEE »)

LB EEREREEN T SRS
i

S5 g v 6%
RiEr & 104

BVEAETRRANEERHMER DR
ZIMWE IR BT SRR N BT
R R B R H 0 82 GPS B im
PR ERAE -

18.

A= HAUFE
For the year ended 3| December 2012

INTANGIBLE ASSET (Continved)

The above intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over

the following period:

Technical know-how 6 years

Licence rights 10 years

The intangible assets mainly represent 2MW Variable Propeller Double-
Fed Induction Generator technical know-how for Wind Energy Related
Products segment and GPS Terminal Development licence rights for

Telecommunication Business segment.

19. REEBATZER 19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

2012 2011

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FLETRE KA Cost of unlisted investments 340,725 325919

BE i G B Exchange adjustments 38,765 29,087
FEEREREN R E 2 ERA Share of post-acquisition profits

(R BRI S R ARERHH) and other comprehensive
income, net of dividend
received and unrealised profit 20,485 15560
399,975 370,566

R-_B-——-FfEk-_FT——F1+-H
=+—H sAFLTREKAZEHE
681,000 73R B Uk B Bk = N Rl R B ER
= F7,184000 B T RERBEFER—
FlE A RHERR °

FRN - REEREEE D FDEE 25,314,000
BIL(Z T — —4F : 72,480,000 7T ) °
BYRER DL LR ZEH0%E S
48.78%

REMFE AEEHEERETHE
NAIZEZHDEXZTBIE=H B
KRB HI136100008 L(ZFT——F:
17,770,000 7T ) + S| B H & 5B & A 7
B ZWEE A 11,802,000 L (=

% :5517,000/87T) °

Included in the cost of unlisted investments as at 31 December 2012
and 2011 is goodwill of HK$681,000 arising on the acquisition of
associates and an unrealised profit of HK$7,184,000 arising on the sales

of goods to an associate in prior year.

During the year, the Group made capital injection of HK$25,314,000
(201 1: HK$72,480,000) into associates, resulting in a change in
shareholding percentage from 40% to 48.78%.

During the current year, the Group disposed of its entire interests in
certain associates to independent third parties for a cash consideration
of HK$13,610,000 (201 I: HK$17,770,000), resulting in gain on disposal
of interest in associates of HK$ | 1,802,000 (201 I: HK$5,517,000).
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19. REFZEATIZHER &) 19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
ANEFBENTIRES S &R E AL The summarised financial information prepared under HKFRSs in respect
REL AR ZEHT T - of the Group's associates is set out below:

2012 2011

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$000

BERE Total assets 3,444,785 3,011,240

BEBH Total liabilities 2,358,196 1,921,490

BEFE Net assets 1,086,589 1,089,750

REBREEBME NG 2 BEFE Group's share of net assets of associates 406,478 377,069

WA Revenue 316,067 369,423

REE 5 F Profit for the year 69,743 90,699

AEEEERERAREE Group's share of results of associates 16,896 15,689
RNEBR -—_ZE——&+-A=+—HY Details of the principal associates of the Group at 31 December 2012

FERLNRFEH N4 o are set out in note 41.
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20. REREEHER2ER

20.

BE—F——F1=—A=1—ALFE
For the year ended 3| December 2012
INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES

2012 201 |
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$000
RERZEHIERE I ETIREKRA - Cost of unlisted investments in jointly
B 5 8 A AR S, controlled entities,
net of pre-acquisition dividend 1,768,321 1,766,841
BE 4, B Exchange adjustments 202,012 166,716
PR B RSN - MRS Share of post-acquisition profits,
net of dividend 98,026 80,462
I EEFE Share of net assets 2,068,359 2014019
B R RERR Less: Impairment loss recognised (652,137) (741,137)
1,416,222 1,272,882

FETMBRERABERKELRESE
EmMEEZEE 561060008 L(ZF
——4% 1 |,156,106000587C) » He - =
7t¢F$Zﬁﬁﬁuﬁmww%
=T —TFEEL 7630005 AT
AR B ERIERR AR 5% EIME

% o

Bk
o

L

]
24t

=
=

E o AEBEKY B 60%IE

F
Z ﬁ \ %ljf%m %X,éﬁé\%ﬁ/\

~\+

%JE%ZTX§W$ﬁ|4SOOOO§%
o R THIBREMAE RITE
EﬁlﬁﬁZFﬁﬁﬁ%E&EFﬁﬁé%ﬁé%*ﬁ
REAAMEE  ZRERRIE—BERL
FIEHIERE 2 KA -

\3%;%

RIZE——% FAEERAEAR—FHH
FAEHERLREAREREDRER

ZGARAR(LRERRE]  #ER
Lmﬁé’*@ﬁ%%ﬁ?uu%z* TREREE

B4 18 [a] J6% 1 /&5 48 89,000,000 78 7T (72 3@

% G 2 W 520 (B 8548 293,242,000 78 7T 2
H) o

Included in the cost of unlisted investments is goodwill of
HK$1,156,106,000 (201 1: HK$1,156,106,000) arising on the acquisition
of jointly controlled entities with an amount of HK$ 1, 155,343,000 arose
in 2007, while HK$763,000 arose in 2010 for additional interest of 5%
in Jiangsu CASC Wind Turbine Manufacture Co.,, Ltd.

During the current year, the Group established a new jointly controlled
entity with 60% shareholding percentage. The investment cost invested
in the new jointly controlled entity is HK$1,480,000. As all the decisions
of the jointly controlled entity regarding the operating and financial
policies require unanimous consent from all joint venturers, the
investment is regarded as an investment in a jointly controlled entity.

In 2012, the Group made a partial reversal of impairment loss of
HK$89,000,000 (out of the impairment loss previously recognised in
prior vears of HK$293,242,000) in relation to the carrying amount of an
interest in a jointly controlled entity, Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine
Management Systems Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Delphi”), which is engaged
in the manufacturing of automotive engine management systems and

components.
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20. REREEHERZ2ER @

TR EREREEFHREHETTEEM
REMFERS - ERHEBERENE
HERREFN BRI R EREREAH
FHEEHEERENER - ZRIZSE
FE ARAEEHERILRERERE
mZANEI SR - KREHIEE
Tz 2 A IR El & B AT K 15.4% E R
FEFREBEEACAASEREGTE
HAREGIEBEEE 2B RRAE
RERE REEAFHZEENE)M
B ERAAZHEREEEM]EZ
BREE  £EXREGERRART
MR RES%:HE - BBAFHIRER
ERBEEREISKHIEL HE - AR
We¢BEaREDNE BE-_—Z=F
+ZA=+—BLEE AKERES
18805 # 2] 4 89,000,000 7 7T ©

HEMAERER(EE) AR A
2012 &£ #f

20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

ENTITIES (Continued)

Beijing Delphi has recorded an increase in sales orders and has showed
continuous improvement in profit making for the past few years. The
actual sales and gross margin are higher than the budgeted sales and
gross margin of Beijing Delphi for the past few years. Taking into
account these facts, the directors of the Company believe that the
recoverable amount of the interest in Beijing Delphi has been increased.
The recoverable amount of the interest in the jointly controlled entity
is determined based on the value in use calculation using the Group's
share of the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected
to be generated by the jointly controlled entity based on a budget
covering a 5-year period discounted at discount rate of 15.4%. The
growth rate being used for the 5-year period for operation of the
jointly controlled entity is 5% based on financial budgets approved by
the management of the jointly controlled entity. Cash flows beyond
the 5-year period are extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 3.5%.
Since the recoverable amount is higher than the carrying amount, the
Group has made a partial reversal of impairment loss of HK$89,000,000
for the year ended 3| December 2012.
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HE_F——F 1 _A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 20/2

AL EEHEEZER @) 20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (Continued)
I A BT S AR AL B The summarised financial information prepared under HKFRSs in
M RNEBKEZHESRESSH respect of the Group's jointly controlled entities attributable to the
TERELEREE v IR ER B ES 0 Group's interest which are accounted for using equity method before
T : consolidation adjustments is set out below:
2012 2011
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
FERBEE Non-current assets 541,465 441933
MBAE Current assets 798,722 829,26
ERBEE Non-current liabilities (166,123) (175,106)
nEEE Current liabilities (652,449) (616,545)
BERE Net assets 521,615 479,543
WA Income 1,970,389 1,751,417
b3 Expenses (1,782,653) (1,590,385)
REZ 5 F Profit for the year 187,736 161,032
z'g;@m— T——&FE+-A=+—-Hz Details of the principal jointly controlled entities of the Group at 3|
HEE S B EEH R 4] - December 2012 are set out in note 41.
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21. TTHHESRMEE

22.

21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET

2012 2011

FET TET

HK$’000 HK$000

Equity security listed in Hong Kong 102,944 =

) BERRFABRE 2RO MG R E
BREN06%ER c EERITZBHR
Bt 22 frtrh REFEATEHESHE
EERATEEFREAMEERAPRE

The listed equity security is the Company’s 0.6% interest in Huadian
Fuxin Energy Corporation Limited (“Huadian Fuxin”) through
subscription of new shares in Huadian Fuxin's initial public offering.
The shares of Huadian Fuxin are listed on the Stock Exchange. The
investment is classified as available-for-sale financial asset with its fair

value change recognised in the other comprehensive income.

{J o

5E 22. INVENTORIES
2012 2011
FEx FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
Rt Raw materials 158,988 76,467
M Work-in-progress 105,006 55,141
S Finished goods 218,692 238,030
482,686 469,638

TEMXBRER(EE) BARAF
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23. ES R H MBI

Eo9REMEBFTBESE 5 ENK
3X493,668000% L(= T — — F:
169,502,000 7T ) * B K& R Bk & &
65,687,000/ 7T (=Z ——%F : 70,143,000
BrL)e —_E——F+-A=t+—-8B2
BORRRBELERKTE=ME
WERE7932200FL(ZF——F:
28,624,000/ 70 ) ° HH BN I BE3F (=
T——F :3F)ERPLEREEE - &
RE SR FEGES  AEEREE
EmkREHEHEATERFFH0AE
EH - HITEFHBEANTEREERP
REERE-—FRNEE - BEEXZHE
(WHEERESWERRBE)IRZES

FENGR RS ) NS PR T &R 2

U]]

BE-—T——F1+-A=1—HIFFE
For the year ended 3| December 2012

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables of
HK$493,668,000 (201 I: HK$169,502,000) net of allowance for doubtful
debts of HK$65,687,000 (201 I: HK$70,143,000). The amount of trade
receivables at 31 December 2012 included retention receivables for
the sales of wind turbines to third parties of HK$79,322,000 (201 I:
HK$28,624,000). The balances will be settled upon the completion
of warranty period of | - 3 years (201 1: 3 years). For the remaining
balances of trade receivables, the Group allows credit periods for 90
days on average to its customers for sales of goods and rendering of
services. At the discretion of the executive directors, several major
customers were allowed to settle their balances beyond the credit
terms up to one year. The following is an aged analysis of trade
receivables, net of allowances, presented based on the invoice dates
at the end of the reporting period, which approximated the respective

revenue recognition dates:

BREDATIT

2012 201 |
FHT FHT
HK$’000 HK$000
30AA Within 30 days 280,280 48,503
31290H - 90 days 4,987 7,740
91Z 180 H - 180 days 7,112 3,821
181 &365H Between [81 - 365 days 85,916 389
B —F Over | year 115,373 109,049
493,668 169,502

REBvESENREHBIERERASR Included in the Group's trade receivable balance are debtors with

163,595,000 T 2 EM BE R (ZF — —
% : 756350008 70) - ZERAERRK
SHRBE  MASERARBEREES
B AEBUTREZSEH 2 EME
R ZERWER 2 FHKRER /365 R
(ZZ——F :365H) °

aggregate carrying amount of HK$163,595,000 (201 I: HK$75,635,000)
which are past due at the end of the reporting period for which the
Group has not provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold

any collateral over these balances. The average age of these receivables
is 365 days (201 1: 365 days).
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

23. B RHEMEBWER =)

EBHERREZE SR KRN

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

T

2012 2011
F#7 FET
HK$’000 HK$000

b=t Overdue by:
0&9H Between 0 - 90 days 7,112 3821
91Z [80H Between 91 - 180 days 70,966 389
i@ 180 H Over 180 days 85,517 71,425
e Total 163,595 75,635

AEE-REA/MABB365AMEK
SERERE  ARBEELR %%
BHI365 H My UK —REZWE -
HTEERBRTREEREHZETE

The Group will normally provide fully for all receivables overdue 365
days because historical experiences is such that receivables that are past
due 365 days are generally not recoverable, except for some major
customers with longer credit terms at the discretion of the executive

ERER) o directors.
REERESEHNT Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts:
2012 2011
FET T
HK$’000 HK$000
FHEEER Balance at beginning of the year 70,143 147,185
BE i, S B Exchange realignment 517 —
B I RW BB EEE Impairment loss recognised in respect
of trade receivables 45 10,381
B Z W 2 R E B B Recovery of impairment loss in respect
of trade receivables (5,018) =
WEHFARAIKE 2 £ 5 Amounts written off during
the year as uncollectible —_ (2916)
S H N Disposal of a subsidiary - (84,507)
FRRAEER Balance at end of the year 65,687 70,143
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23. B REMEBWER =)

REBBERIEAECAR, RRNEF
P ELAR S [ 8 B K X 5 ) (E Bl RE &Y
BHRMES - AREYERAFHEH
FEEMERmM -

REMETAHEFH  AREZHTE
FHEAEGMENBBEERFZEEE
ERREEPZEERE -BTEFPZ
REBELL2ZBEFETLERETE DR
A AREEHHMERREZERT
B 67%(—F——%F : 64%) B H UK
SRR BT o

AEBR=ZZE——F+-A=+—H2Z
H iy U B35 122310008 T(=ZF
——%F 17,118,000/ T)  FE U £ R 4%
HIEEERE 0 164800008 (T ——
FE\)I2EK—BHBHEQRRE B
Bl B A B 5B 7 B 2 12 & 88,820,000
BL(=ZZF——F :85013000% )
1B E 827140008 T(ZF ——
% 582940004 7T) - BEE 2 EUK
EE e 18480320008 (= F
——F 1 1156960008 7T ) & H B fE UK
—HERZHEEREEE 2 BREE
48,295,000 % 7t (=& — — 4 : 6,000,000
BIL) c AEBERARKEENRES
B2 BRERIITE 90 BIAA ©

A= HAUFE
For the year ended 3| December 2012

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The balance of the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired
trade receivables which have been overdue 365 days or/and have no
material transactions with the Group during the year. The Group does

not hold any collateral over these balances.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group's executive directors
and marketing team would assess the potential customer's credit quality
and defines credit limits by customer. Limits attributed to customers are
reviewed regularly with reference to past settlement history. 67% (201 I:
64%) of the trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired

have the best credit history managed by the Group's marketing team.

Included in the Group's other receivables at 31 December 2012 are
dividend receivable from jointly controlled entities of HK$12,231,000
(2011: HK$7,118,000), dividend receivable from an associate of
HK$ 16,480,000 (201 I: nil), deposits for purchase of inventories for
subsidiaries in the PRC of HK$88,820,000 (201 1: HK$85,013,000), VAT
recoverable of HK$82,714,000 (201 1: HK$58,294,000), bills receivable
of HK$48,032,000 (201 I: HK$115,696,000) in relation to the settlement
of trade receivables and bills receivable of HK$48,295,000 (201 I:
HK$6,000,000) in relation to the settlement of dividend receivable from
a jointly controlled entity. All bills receivables of the Group are aged
within 90 days for both years.
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BE—F——F1-A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

24. FEU FEFMTEEZ AT 24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES
Bl ENBEATZAZEHIUE & The amounts due from/to associates are trade nature, unsecured, non-
- %E&%*ﬁmi% BIERE - 18 interest bearing and have credit period of 30 to 90 days. Based on
BREQH  ZEZEAREEERD invoice date, the amounts are aged within 90 days for both years.
BB RIORMA -
JE U Bt 5 N\ T R 7 B B - Movement in the allowance for amounts due from associates:
2012 2011
FET TET
HK$°000 HK$000
FHEER Balance at beginning of the year 2,432 23,383
F& O] fE i B 2 0 R A Reversal of amount due from an associate —_ 1223
WEH A T U 1 3R IR Amount written off as uncollectible - (22,174)
FIRRAEER Balance at end of the year 2,432 2432
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25. FEMWFEfH S EIEFIERR

I

ZERBOERWERZESE B
110940000 (= & — — &F:
133,391,000/87C) - EFBEERT &
A 12 ) & 869,063,000/ L(=ZF ——
F 196,000,000 7T ) * G F @& E Fl X
RB56%(ZF — — F: ) F486%%
61%) RER-ZZE—=F ARtAE
B(ZE—%: ARZ=Z—ZF~A
Rt RBEE) - #%41,877,0008 (=
T——F:373910081)5%E
RERKEETEHE REHRE2E
AREE - LREFHEREAEED
51 & HE - £t B 569,063,000 TT
(ZZF——%:9600000087T) % = F
——Ff+-A=t-HZEMAEXE
A #2308320008 (ZE ——F -
30,000,000 78 70 ) #% LA B3R 5% L R4 I B
BzIEBEARE TEMEERNFT

78 £

BRIEEE -

T —F+-AZ=Z+-—BZEWK
EAZEHERBRTEERBEFE
HERKTHERZEGEBHOERS
R £29,520000% (= & — — F:
28,404,000 L) - HRZF—AFHRK
HiE R 4 o

&S T — A (R 45 ) & B8 2 22,573,000
BL(ZE——F : B)EE —HERE
HIERBEDRZRESR - FR - AEER
BT HRAZEGEE - REP 2RITRE
AR 77 {E 1 B 7% 2 1R 22,573,000 8 70 ( =
T——F &) ZHREHERRE
ZHMAEBZ RSB IIREER
RES - ZEEBRBEHTEERE
—F R o

A= HAUFE
For the year ended 3| December 2012

25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO JOINTLY

CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Included in the balances is amount due from a jointly controlled entity
of HK$ 110,940,000 (201 1: HK$133,391,000), of which loans advanced
to the jointly controlled entity amounted to HK$69,063,000 (201 I:
HK$96,000,000) bears fixed interest rate at 5.6% (201 |: 4.86% to 6.1%)
per annum and is repayable in June and July 2013 (201 I: repayable in
June and July 2012). The remaining amounts of HK$41,877,000 (201 I:
HK$37,391,000) is non-interest bearing, repayable on demand and are
expected to be settled within |2 months from the end of the reporting
period. The jointly controlled entity has entered into arrangements
with the Group towards the above loans of HK$69,063,000 (201 I:
HK$96,000,000) and other current account balance of HK$30,832,000
(2011: HK$30,000,000) as at 31 December 2012 shall be repaid from
the proceeds upon the realisation of the land and buildings and certain

other assets of that jointly controlled entity.

The amounts due from jointly controlled entities at 31 December
2012 also included retention receivables of HK$29,520,000 (201 I:
HK$28,404,000) for the sales of wind turbines to a jointly controlled
entity that took place in prior years which will be settled upon the

completion of warranty period in 2015.

Amount due to a jointly controlled entity of HK$22,573,000 (201 I:
nil), represented a guarantee deposit received from a jointly controlled
entity. During the year, the Group issued a financial guarantee of
HK$22,573,000 (2011 nil) to a bank in respect of a banking facility
granted to a customer of the jointly controlled entity. The jointly
controlled entity deposited the same amount to the Group as guarantee
deposit under the arrangement. The amount will be released in one year

from the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

26. IRITEE: CIKIPRITES 26. BANK BALANCES/PLEDGED BANK

DEPOSITS
$RITEEL CIRIPRITES Bank balances/pledged bank deposits
RITHEBRIR00IBE 125% 2 RITTIHE Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates which range from
FR(—Z——4F : 00I1%% %) 8B o 0.01% to 1.25% (2011: 0.01% to %) per annum.
BITEHBETINEBE R EK Included in bank balances are the following amounts denominated in
PAONE MR EZIE o currencies other than the functional currency of the entity to which they
are related.
2012 2011
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$000
BT HK$ 2,305 7,632
B 4R 1T 22 0.35% 7 [ 5 & A = The pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest rate of 0.35% (2011:
(—T—— & :050%):t 8 - BDiKHER 0.50%) per annum. The pledged bank deposits, amounting to
113 %024947.000% T(— B — — & : HK$24,947,000 (201 I: HK$22,606,000), have been pledged to secure
22,606,000 70 ) B REE F 481724 certain bank facilities and are therefore classified as current assets. It
TR USEARBEE  HERN- will be released in March 2013 upon the settlement of the related
—Z5= AREARMEERRER - OGS
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27. B REMEMAR

EoREMENFBREEZEN
419,898,000 (= & — — &F:
246,043,000 7T ) ° AEER T LA
FERELE30AE0RMNEER - 25
EN XN BRE T EREER 2 REE D
DR UENE

A= HAUFE
For the year ended 3| December 2012

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables of
HK$419,898,000 (201 I: HK$246,043,000). The Group normally receives
credit period for 30 to 90 days from its suppliers. The following is an
aged analysis of trade payables based on invoice date at the end of the

reporting period:

2012 2011

FET TET

HK$’000 HK$000

30BA Within 30 days 125,720 223628
31E9%H Between 31 - 90 days 159,941 11,720
912180 H Between 91 - 180 days 23,540 2,598
181 &365H Between [81 - 365 days 71,541 3,069
HiB—F Over | year 39,156 5,028
419,898 246,043

RZE—ZF+=ZA=+—8H" &
AREBZEMENRBEEEET
T2 5 B IE6,341,0008 (=T — —
F 11,739,000 7T )~ R T IEE
B M R 25 B 839960008 m(= &
— — % 15220000/ 7T )« T8 & W B
B P FIA548000%8 (= T — —
F 1229050008 ) HERES
6,166,000 7L(=Z ——4F : 15,600,000
W 7T ) - FE T I8 8 X 253,730,000 % TT
(ZT——4% 12960008 7T)  JERHE
REME4280000FTL(ZFE——F:
4,165,000 7T ) K2 FE - 2 4% 30,139,000 74
T(ZTE——F ) -

AEBR-ZE——F+-A=1+—HH
Hih R H T REREMBRR—HBIE
72 1 Y R A B 3R68, 14,0008 T8 0 5%
BXER-ZE——F#H£5-

Included in the Group's other payable at 3| December 2012 are
accruals for construction work of HK$6,341,000 (201 I: HK$11,739,000),
dividend payables to non-controlling interests of HK$3,996,000 (201 I:
HK$5,220,000), receipt in advance from customers of HK$9,548,000
(2011: HK$122,905,000), project guarantee deposits of HK$6,166,000
(201 I: HK$15,600,000), accrued transportation cost of HK$3,730,000
(201 1: HK$1,296,000), office rental payable of HK$4,280,000 (201 I:
HK$4,165,000) and bills payable of HK$30,139,000 (201 I: nil).

The Group's other payable at 31 December 201 | also included a loan
from a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary of HK$68, 114,000
which was settled in 2012.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

28. RIEHEE

REBBEEERBEARBERAMHE
R REREZHRTE MY
AR A R A AT 2 3

B M 2t

28. WARRANTY PROVISION

Warranty provision represents the present value of the directors’

best estimate of the future outflow of economic benefits that will be

required under the Group's obligations for warranties of local sales of

wind turbines.

(R E B 5 B Movement in the warranty provision:
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
FH) 2 R Balance at beginning of the year 22,380 18,491
b 30 8B Exchange adjustments 621 638
R I REAE Additional provisions recognised 14,204 11,094
PRkEE Utilisation of provision (5,987) (7,843)
FIRZ R Balance at end of the year 31,218 22,380
29. £ 29. BORROWINGS
2012 2011
FAET FHET
HK$’000 HK$000
RITRAER (M) Short term bank loans (Note a) 755,380 374,400
BREEAER(MED) Short term shareholder's loans (Note b) — 156,000
BRRRAER(HTb) Long term shareholder's loans (Note b) 961,954 716,400
Hih e ISR (M) Short term other loans (Note c) 36,998 —
HiRBAEHR(Mizd) Long term other loans (Note d) 82,370 80,148
1,836,702 1,326,948
BN RRBEETNR Less: Amount due within
R—FREEZRE one year under current liabilities (792,378) (530,400)
—F 1R FE Amount due after one year 1,044,324 796,548
AEBEEZIHHRNT - The maturity of the Group's
borrowings is as follows:
—FR Within one year 792,378 530,400
MEEREF Between two to five years 961,954 716,400
HiAhE Over five years 82,370 80,148
1,836,702 1,326,948
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29. £ )

EA—==—:¢+—HZ+—E|2*J&IE

& 4 3 1 R 17 B 31 724,548,000 7 JT 3%
}\E*ﬂéfsszsoo,ooo;z(_? ——fF:
374,400,000 % 7T 3 A K " 312,000,000
JC) RIER R 1T B 330,832,000 8 LK
A R #25000000C(=F — — F ¢
&) BRETERBAR T —Z=F
TZA=+—HEEREER 86,932,000
BT ZE——F: )M REF
T

B 3X344,700000% 7T % A R %
279,500000(=F — —F : &) &
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29. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

@

The amount at 3| December 2012 represents unsecured bank loans
of HK$724,548,000 or RMB587,500,000 (201 I: HK$374,400,000
or RMB312,000,000) and a secured bank loan of HK$30,832,000 or
RMB25,000,000 (201 I: nil). The secured bank loan is secured by land
and buildings with carrying amount of the land and buildings at 31
December 2012 is HK$86,932,000 (201 I: nil).

Loans of HK$344,700,000 or RMB279,500,000 (201 I: nil) bear fixed-rate
interest ranging from 6% to 6.56% per annum. Loans of HK$233,705,000
or RMB189,500,000 (201 I: nif), and HK$ 110,995,000 or RMB90,000,000
(20111 nil) bear fixed-rate interest at 6% and 6.56% per annum
respectively.

Loans of HK$410,680,000 or RMB333,000,000 (201 I: HK$374,400,000
or RMB312,000,000) bear floating-rate interest at 5% to 10% (201 1:
0% to 10%) on top of People's Bank of China benchmark interest
rate per annum. Loans of HK$123,327,000 or RMB100,000,000
(2011 HK$60,000,000 or RMB50,000,000), HK$ 135,660,000 or
RMBI 10,000,000 (201 I: HK$132,000,000 or RMBI 10,000,000) and
HK$151,693,000 or RMBI123,000,000 (201 I: HK$ 134,400,000 and
RMB112,000,000) bear floating-rate interest at 5%, 8% and 10% on
top of People’s Bank of China benchmark interest rate per annum,
respectively. Loans of HK$48,000,000 or RMB40,000,000 at 3|
December 201 | bear floating-rate interest at 0% on top of People's
Bank of China benchmark interest rate per annum were fully repaid in
June 2012.

The loans are repayable in 2013 (2011: 2012) and are used to finance
the operations of the Group.
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29. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(@

The amounts represent loans advanced from CALT through CASC's
subsidiary, Aerospace Science and Technology Finance Co., Ltd.
(“ASTF") as the trustee in aggregate amounting to HK$961,954,000
or RMB780,000,000 (201 I: HK$872,400,000 or RMB727,000,000)
with HK$225,689,000 or RMBI183,000,000 (201 I: HK$636,000,000 or
RMB530,000,000) additionally raised in the year.

The amounts are unsecured, bear fixed-rate interest ranging from 3.7%
to 4.88% (201 1: 3.7% to 5%) per annum. Loans of HK$308,319,000
or RMB250,000,000 (201 I: HK$236,400,000 or RMB197,000,000),
HK$493,309,000 or RMB400,000,000 (201 I: HK$480,000,000 or
RMB400,000,000) and HK$160,326,000 or RMB130,000,000 (201 I: nil)
are repayable in April 2014, April 2016 and July 2017 respectively. Loan
of HK$156,000,000 or RMB130,000,000 at 31 December 201 | was fully
repaid in June 2012,

The amount represents a new loan advanced from a financial institution
in the PRC. The loan is unsecured and carries interest at benchmark loan
rates set by the People’s Bank of China in the PRC. The loan is repayable
in May 2013.

The amount represents a loan of HK$82,370,000 or RMB66,790,000
(2011: HK$80,148,000 or RMB66,790,000) advanced from a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary. The amount is unsecured,
bears floating-rate interest at 0.9 times of the People's Bank of China
Benchmark interest rate that is 6.12% (201 |: 6.16%) per annum and is
repayable in full in November 2020.



e SRR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. EEHIE

RENGEAMBRRARME - ETEL
HABEERREE THHE - LT AR
BB S < EEHRREHRAN -

B E—CF A= HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2012

30. DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been
offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for

financial reporting purposes:

2012 2011

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$000

REFIBEE Deferred tax assets 3,090 3,985
BRERERE Deferred tax liabilities (18,823) (19,188)
(15,733) (15,203)

AEBCHAZEAELEHREARB(E
E)TE :

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised
by the Group:

B E
BRREME Hth  ROEES
Revaluation (Bf3E)  Undistributed
of investment Others profits of ek
properties (note) subsidiaries Total
T TET T TR
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000
RZZ2——%—-A—H At | January 201 | 4,128 (5022) 13851 12957
B AR Exchange adjustments 142 (111 — 3
BRiX M Charge to profit or loss 1410 1148 2986 5,544
BN 2R TR PRC withholding tax paid — — (3329) (3329)
R-ZT——%F At 31 December 201 |
+=ZA=+-A 5680 (3,985) 13,508 15203
B % A% Exchange adjustments 157 (84) 3 76
BRI Charge to profit or loss — 979 064 2,043
EXfzPERNH PRC withholding tax paid (1589) (1589)
RZZ—Z% At 31 December 2012
+ZA=+—-A 5837 (3,090) 12,986 15,733

Mt - 2SR I ERBUNMB RREERE
EEZ R ER

Note: The amount mainly represents temporary differences arising on
government grants and warranty provision.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

0. IBMEHIE &)
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30. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At 31 December 2012, the Group has estimated unused tax losses of
approximately HK$874,664,000 (201 I: HK$644,895,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the tax losses during the year due to unpredictability of
future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$374,973,000 (201 I: HK$364,028,000) that may be carried forward
indefinitely. The remaining unrecognised tax losses will expire within five
years from 2014 to 2017 (201 1: from 2014 to 2016).

At 31 December 2012, the Group has deductible temporary difference
of HK$139,676,000 (201 I: HK$81,896,000). No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary difference as
it is not probable that taxable profit will be available against which the

deductible temporary difference can be utilised.

Deferred taxation of HK$12,986,000 (201 I: HK$13,508,000) has been
provided in respect of temporary differences attributable to those
undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries. Deferred taxation has not
been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to undistributed profits of the PRC
subsidiaries amounting to HK$20,878,000 (201 I: HK$17,388,000) as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.
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31. BRFHEBY 31.

32.

RZE—ZF+-_A=+—8B ' H®
¥ % 809,033,000/ (=T — — F -
8,079,000 7T ) £ E R EI BT # @A
BME BERSBEREREMETZ

HE_F——F 1 _A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2012

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

At 31 December 2012, government grants of HK$9,033,000 (201 I:
HK$8,079,000) mainly represent subsidies granted by PRC government
authorities for the purpose of financing the acquisition of property, plant

and equipment. The amount will be recognised in profit or loss over

HE) o e WEEEREIEEF(E 33'/3 years according to the useful lives of the relevant land and buildings
BEEYE BERSERN)ZAERERE (included in property, plant and equipment).
B33 FRIRRER
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
RERMAEL 2 A : Analysed for reporting purpose as:
FREEE Non-current liabilities 8,531 7,830
mEBE Current liabilities 502 249
9,033 8,079
[ ZN 32. SHARE CAPITAL
RAOEE &8
Number of
shares Amount
&
HK$'000
FIREEO. 108 T2 E@mAik Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
ERE Authorised:
RZZ——F—HA—H" :;**E At | January 2011, 31 December 201 |
+-RA=+t-HE=-ZT——F and 3| December 2012
+=-—R=+—H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
BETMER - Issued and fully paid:
RZZB——F—A—B ZZ——%F At January 2011, 3] December 201 |
+-A=+t-—HE=-ZT——F and 3| December 2012
+=—R=+—H 3,968,995,668 396,900
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BE—F——F1-A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

33. EXEGER 33. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AEFBTEHEN  BEAEERNZE The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
BE Gbght i R T BE(L AR be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the retum to
X7 ITEmARESEN S @ o shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
INEE R B SRR B L (R o The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.
ANEFBZERNEERIEERG  ShaE The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the
RO EZEEHBRE LR S borrowings disclosed in note 29, net of cash and cash equivalents and
ZEY)ARKRATIEE AELER(E equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
BEBETRAK  FERRBEER) - capital, reserves and accumulated losses.
AEEETEEBTHRTERNER - TR The management of the Group reviews the capital structure regularly.
[BEEERKARERERERNIBEN The management considers the cost of capital and the risks associated
FEEE - Be FLEREENRERE o with each class of capital, and will balance its overall capital structure.
34. ﬁﬁﬂlﬁ- 34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
2R T BRI Categories of financial instruments
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
TREE Financial assets
EFRERER(BEES Loans and receivables
FBReEEY) (including cash and cash equivalents) 1,337,755 1,190,525
AtHESREE Available-for-sale financial asset 102,944 —
1,440,699 1,190,525
CRIBE Financial liabilities
B AR Amortised cost 2,460,825 1,647,881

144 TEMXBREBR(KE) FRAF
2012 £ 3F
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34, €T H &)
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For the year ended 3| December 2012

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include available-for-sale financial
asset, trade and other receivables, amounts due from/to associates,
amounts due from jointly controlled entities, pledged bank deposits,
fixed bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables
and borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments

and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.

The financial instruments are fundamental to the Group's daily
operations. The management manages and monitors the exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner. There has been no change to the Group's exposure to credit
risk, market risk and liquidity risk or the manner in which it manages and

measures the risk.

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at 31 December
2012 in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position, while the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk due to financial guarantees provided by the Group is the amount
of contingent liabilities in relation to financial guarantees issued by the
Group as disclosed in Note 40. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has formulated a credit policy and delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. The Group has concentration of
credit risk as 24% (201 1: 24%) and 73% (201 1: 53%) of the total trade
receivables due from the Group's largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively. The Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade receivable regularly to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group's credit risk is

significantly reduced.
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BE—F——F1-A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

In addition, the Group has concentration of credit risk as 79% (201 I:
82%) of the total amounts due from jointly controlled entities is due
from one jointly controlled entity. The Group monitors the exposure
to credit in respect of the amount due from associates and jointly
controlled entities through exercising influence or control over their
financial and operating policy decisions and reviewing their financial

position on a regular basis.

The credit risk for bank deposits is considered minimal as such amounts

are placed in banks with high credit ratings.

Market risk
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
variable-rate bank balances for 2012 and 201 | (note 26 for details) and
variable-rate bank borrowings for 2012 and 201 | (note 29 for detalils).
The management continuously monitors interest rate fluctuation and

will consider further hedging interest rate risk should the need arise.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed-rate borrowings for 2012 and 201 | (note 29 for detalils), fixed-
rate bank balances for 2011 (note 26 for details) and amounts due
from jointly controlled entities that bear fixed interest rate (note 25
for details). The management monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider repaying the fixed-rate bank borrowings when significant

interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note. The
Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the

fluctuation of People’s Bank of China benchmark interest rate.
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For the year ended 3| December 2012

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank balances at the end
of the reporting period and the stipulated changes taking place at the
beginning of the year and held constant throughout the year.

If the interest rates on variable-rate bank balances and variable-rate
borrowings have been |0 basis points (201 1: 0 basis points) higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group's post-tax
profit would have decreased/increased by approximately HK$51,000
(201'1: HK$73,000).

Currency risk

The Group has minimal currency exposures as the majority of
transactions and balances were denominated in respective functional
currencies of group entities. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign

currency exposures should the need arise.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation

of banking facilities and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on borrowings from CALT as a significant source of
liquidity. In the opinion of directors, adequate sources of funding are
available to enable the Group to meet in full its financial obligations due

for the foreseeable future and manage its liquidity position.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity
for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment
terms. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at the end

of the reporting period.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

FEESRAK(ZE) Liquidity risk (Continued)
FBEELRFEERE Liquidity and interest risk tables
it 307! ARR
RRi= Rehe
Weighted 3fEA 2
average  HERE  SWMIBR  IE3EA Bk SENL Total BEE
effective % Lessthan [-3 3months |Z5E Over undiscounted  Carrying
interest rate  On demand | month months  tolyear  |-Syears Syears  cashflows amount
72 7 7 7En 72 77 73 FEn
% HKSU0  HKSUOD  HKSURO  HKSUO0  HKSUOO  HKSUOD  HKSORD  HKSUO
S 002
HireRef Non-dervtiv fnencl ablites
EARANENT Trade and other payables - 399% 140327 167,448 116,039 39,156 - 466,966 466,966
fE-%8 Borrowings - fied rate 480 - - - 35904 1136113 = LA95,137 1,306,654
EE-%8 Bormowings -flating rate 628 - 123,495 - 34105 - 139,968 597,568 530,048
EfBEATH Amounts due to associates - 134,584 - - - - - 134,584 134,584
A —FAH Amount due to ajointly
ke controlled entty - 1050 - - - - - nsn nsn
BIkER Financil guarantees - - - - 41238 - - 41238 41238
161,153 163811 167,448 856,420 1,175,269 139,968 2764086 2,508,003
-k 211
FiELHaR Non-derivatve fienci abites
EARAKERT Trade end other payables - - 6447 15762 5016 = = DI 115
fe5-%8 Borrowings - fied rate 47l - - - 158558 84622 = 1004780 872400
fEE-%8 Borrowings - foating rate 103 = = = 395346 = 136331 31871 454548
EBEATR Amourts due to assocétes - 63708 - - = = = 63,108 63108

63708 16471 15761 ST 84620 136531 1857590 | 647881
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

34, €T H &)
AFE

SREERERABZ AFETREN
THAEE :

o HAABREFRREHELRERTE
MHERXHZEREEREBARL
RHEDDRZEM S ERERE
BEMEE : &

s HipemEAENRERARMTERE
TETR) 2R FERUBARESR
ENMRBEERMZEERAE

F o

EERAR REHERAFAGSRBR
FeeRMBERGRAGZREERL
AFERE -

35. EAXEIE

R-B-——FfR-_F——%1+-A
=t+—B - REEAEDTOERESE
2 B R F X H #)86,400,000 78 LI & 7
AEBHINGEDE -

FEMRERER(KE) BRAF
2012 £ 3F

34.

35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair values

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as

follows:

. the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with
standard terms and conditions and traded in active liquid markets
are determined with reference to quoted market bid prices and

ask prices respectively; and

J the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative instruments) is determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash

flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated

financial statements approximate to their fair values.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2012 and 201 I, the Group was committed to
capital expenditure contracted but not provided for of approximately
HK$86,400,000 relating to its investment in sino-foreign enterprise of
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. MEHERIE
AREEBKEN

REBERRTHEE  NEERETAH
WL RN AR L R E T HRE
BAREMT :

B E—CF A= HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 20/2

36. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had future minimum lease
payments payable under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of

land and buildings as set out below:

2012 2011

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$000

—FR Within one year 9,225 5,658
B_EEZFNF(EEMFEBEEA)  Inthe second to fifth year inclusive 2,862 2,384
12,087 8,042

BAO—RAFIRFEHR(—F——5F
ME)ETEN - MESNEHRTE -
FEEEAHBA

RBERRTHEE  AEEREBFTZ
TXNAREEREFANT :

Leases are generally negotiated for an average term of two years (201 I:
two years) and rentals are fixed for the lease period.
The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with

tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

2012 201 |

FET FET

HK$°000 HK$000

—FR Within one year 1,483 1,443
F_FEFRF(EEMFRIELEN)  Inthe second to fifth year inclusive 4,448 —
5,931 | 443
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

37. BHAKEFIGHE

ARENBEMBRERERRITRS
HABEeFE([ZATE)) ZEt8 2B
ENRASEEEDHEEIHETLA
EH| o AN LA B ACAS 2 5% 1

$R - MR B IMEH RIFH -

RAE 2 HEMERREE AT BB
EECZEREERARBANGET 2K
B ARFZHEMBARARKREZ
FMARARRAGERAETED LR
HIAZ N - ARBEBRAREME
B E—BERREZTEMELAT L

B o

st AIB 28 Z B 7R 4 589,877,00078 T( =
T——1F : 4790,0007 7T ) BN AR £ B AR

SEHIMEN %R B HR -

38. HEAEA T2 5 Eht

BrBIsE24 « 25 R 2OFTIMBEE SN » KNEH

HEERRA TNEAR S R

() SPEBFERERZXS

AKERENHTERGRRE
il AEERRITEEAFEN
ER((BAERERDTEZR
BRETEE - o AREXY
SR B P BB 2 AR T

ZERRAIEE -

FEMRERER(KE) BRAF
2012 £ 3F

37.

38.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of trustee. The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs

to the Scheme, which contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the Company's PRC subsidiaries are members
of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the
PRC government. The Company's PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement
benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required

contributions under the scheme.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$9,877,000 (201 I:
HK$4,790,000) represents contributions payable to these schemes by

the Group in respect of the current accounting period.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES

Other than disclosed in notes 24, 25 and 29, the Group has the

following significant transactions and balances with related companies:

(i) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently
predominated by entities ultimately controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by the PRC government (“government-
related entities”). In addition, the Group itself is part of a larger
group of companies under CASC which is controlled by the PRC

government.
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38. HRE AT 23c5 &8s

(&)

() RPERFHAEREZXS

(&)

() BETHAKEzIRS

(1

WRZE-—ZF%+ZH
=T—HZEERER
BAERERTHMEL
Bt B R Rl R A B B 7
ERXFEAZBEER
(Z2E——F: H%)
A #£961954,000%8 7T
% A & 780,000,000
(= & — — &F:
872,400,007 7T 3k A
R #727,000,0007C ) °
FHERAEHERR
B EFEENT37%
E488%(= T
F3I%E%) 0 B X
308,319,000 T AR
#250,0000007c(= &
— — £ 1 236,400,000
JL 3k A R % 197,000,000
7T ) 493,309,000/ 7T
g A R 400,000,000
Tz T — — F:
480,000,000 75 3 A
R % 400,000,0007C ) R
160,326,000 L3 A R
#130,0000007L(= &
——F: E)BARIR
—T-NEWMA =T
—NERARZE—t
FrtABEE-RZ=%
——F+ZA=1+—H
2 E70156,000,0007 7T
g%, A R # 130,000,000 7
ERZE—-F A%
YEE-

B E—CF A= HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2012

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES (Continued)

(i) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC (Continued)

(@) Transactions with CASC Group

(1

Included in borrowings at 3| December 2012
were four (201 : four) loans advanced from CALT
through CASC's subsidiary, ASTF, as the trustee
totalling HK$961,954,000 or RMB780,000,000
(2011: HK$872,400,000 or RMB727,000,000) which
are unsecured and bear fixed-rate interest ranging
from 3.7% to 4.88% (201 1: 3.7% to 5%) per annum.
Loans of HK$308,319,000 or RMB250,000,000
(2011: HK$236,400,000 or RMB197,000,000),
HK$493,309,000 or RMB400,000,000 (201 I:
HK$480,000,000 or RMB400,000,000) and
HK$ 160,326,000 or RMB 130,000,000 (201 I: nil)
are repayable in April 2014, April 2016 and July
2017 respectively. Loan of HK$156,000,000 or
RMB 130,000,000 at 31 December 2011 was fully
repaid in June 2012.
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38. HRE AT 2355 &8s

€

(¥

ROBEBFHERERZXS

(&)

(@) EhHEEEZRSH)

)

RZE-—ZFN1A
+—H ' ARFR—M
(RPN E g
Kb —R2E B
REIMAME RIS
MEET([ AR # )
YL HE B
It AEEM G RR
Lt 2 R A
AR EEEE A
R [ 75 2 48 8 B 7%
FA - ASREM M
AMKEEREER
9,963,000 B LA K
#8,078,0007C 2 [&,
BER RB@RS -
BARZFBEINAE
UNCTI=E: =
FNRA+—BZAMH
q:l o

TEMXBRER(EE) BARAF

2012 F #

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES (Continued)

(i) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC (Continued)

(@) Transactions with CASC Group (Continued)

o

On Il September 2012, a subsidiary of the
Company, IM Composite Material, entered into a
commissioning agreement with Aerospace Research
Institute of Materials & Processing Technology
(“Aerospace Material”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of CALT, pursuant to which IM Composite Material
is to supply wind turbine blades and the associated
services incidental thereto to Aerospace Material
in accordance with the terms of the commissioning
agreement. During the year, IM Composite Material
supplied wind turbine blades and the associated
services to Aerospace Material amounted to
HK$9,963,000 or RMB8,078,000. Details of
the transaction are set out in the Company's

announcement dated | | September 2012.
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38. HREAT 235 &t

(&)

() RPEREFEARERZXS

(&)

(a) BVHAKEzRS(#)

©)

R-_F—FF+—FH
t+—H  ARA=R
MEARARES
AREN R RER
TXEAR 2L
RERDELEH
7157 MAE R W5 &
Bt AKES A

SEMRIERERR
BE_Z——%+=

A=+—BEMEH
BFEEREE DS
Z A& A B A
JERE  REBER R
bies 2 AR - »
—E——F AR
RERILR SRR
FEBRHIEES R
#523996,00078 TT
A R #19,997,0007C
R BRERR
RS - EHEX 5

FEHNADQE A
AZTE—ZTF+—8
+—HHAH -

B E—CF A= HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2012

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES (Continued)

(i) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC (Continued)

(@) Transactions with CASC Group (Continued)

3)

On || November 2010, three subsidiaries of the
Company, IM Turbine Manufacture, IM Composite
Material and Beijing Energine Industry Co. Ltd.
("Beijing Energine”), entered into a framework
agreement with Shanghai Hanli, pursuant to which
IM Turbine Manufacture, IM Composite Material
and Beijing Energine were to supply wind turbines,
wind turbine blades and the associated services
incidental thereto to Shanghai Hanli in accordance
with the terms of the framework agreement for the
two financial years ended 3| December 201 1. In
2011, IM Turbine Manufacture and Beijing Energine
supplied wind turbines, wind turbine blades and
the associated services to Shanghai Hanli amounted
to HK$23,996,000 or RMB19,997,000. Details
of the transaction are set out in the Company's

announcement dated | | November 2010.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

38. BB AT 25 Eht

€
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RoEEFERERZX S

(&)

(b) HEMBNEEIXS

(1

—E—-_%+=HA
=t+—HZBERE
Rl Ny NG E
HlERRE N 2 —%F
& 782,370,000/ T
g A B % 66,790,000
(= — — F:
80,148,000/ JT 3% A
% 66,790,0007T )
ZRIA R ER R R
BEFIE B612%(=
T——F:616%) "
VERZE-_ZEFE
+—PR28EE -

B

i

TEMXBRER(EE) BARAF
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES (Continued)

(i) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC (Continued)

(b) Transactions with other government entities

(1

Included in borrowings at 31 December 2012 was
a loan of HK$82,370,000 or RMB66,790,000 (201 I:
HK$80, 148,000 or RMB66,790,000) advanced from
a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary. The
amount is unsecured, bears floating-rate interest at
6.12% (201 1: 6.16%) per annum and is repayable in
full in November 2020.
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(b) BEMBRREIRS(E)
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AKETEABEG
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For the year ended 3| December 2012

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES (Continued)

(i) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC (Continued)

(b) Transactions with other government entities
(Continued)

o

The Group conducts business with other
government-related entities. The directors consider
those government-related entities are independent
third parties so far as the Group's business with them
are concemed. The Group also has certain sales and
purchases transactions with certain customers and
suppliers in which the directors are of the opinion
that it is impracticable to ascertain the identity of
the counterparties and accordingly whether the
transactions are with other government-related

entities.

In addition, the Group has entered into various
transactions, including deposits placements,
borrowings and other general banking facilities, with
banks which are government-related entities. A
majority of its bank deposits and bank borrowings are
with government-related entities.
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38. BAREALTZR S &R 38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
(%) BALANCES (Continued)
(i) REMEAELZRS (i) Transactions with other related parties

@ EN—-—MBELQAEXREA (a)  The amount due to an associate of HK$ 134,584,000 (201 I:
134,584,000 T(= & — — HK$64,000,000) is trade nature, unsecured, non-interest
% : 64,000000/ ) BR 5 bearing and is repayable within one year according to the
HE - BER 2ERER credit period. The amount due from an associate is trade
REAHR-—FNEE - nature, unsecured, non-interest bearing and is repayable on
W—HEERAHERR S demand.

HE - BER - 2ENERE

(b) BEEK R EEESIER (b)  For amounts due from/to jointly controlled entities, please
B - F2MHMEES - refer to note 25.
) RNFEAR  FAEERBBEAL (c)  During the year, the Group had the following significant
ZERZZWT : transactions with related parties:
2012 2011
FAET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
HEZBE DA Sales of goods to associates —_ 120,532
BEENEEE Purchase of goods from associates 134,304 67,015
REMABHE I 2 REEK Interest on loan from a shareholder,
2 ASTF 43,976 41,661
FEfTE — M B AR Interest on other loan due to
BEREATEN a non-controlling shareholder
IR 2 EtERF R with significant influence over a subsidiary 5,279 4806
KB EREH B Interest income from jointly
ZHBWA controlled entities 7,137 7014

158 TEMABRER(KE) FRAF
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38. HRE AT 23c5 &8s

(&)

(i) REMBREELZXS (£)

HE_F——F 1 _A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2012

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/

BALANCES (Continued)

(ii) Transactions with other related parties (Continued)

d) FEBEBABZHM (d)  Compensation of key management personnel
FRATEEBEABZHFMM The remuneration of key management during the year was
I as follows:

2012 2011
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
5 HiE A Short-term benefits 6,379 6,394
BB 2 18 A Post-employment benefits 14 12
6,393 6,406
FTE2EH A S 2 H M & The remuneration of key management is determined
ZEeREAARB LTSS by the remuneration committee having regard to the
PET - performance of individuals and market trends.

39. FEFRER S

iﬂq — P B B A B FE 128 AR AR 3R 1m0 % Y

NAIEEYZE - BKE KRR E 47,502,000
/%rc(_?——i CEVEREZMB AR
AIHE

RZBE—Z—F+ZA=+—8 #£K
U B8 [ E B E 2 38 6,341,00078 T(=
T——4F 1 []739,00058 7T ) MR EEL
BETAEMERTR

& 5 5£3,996,00008 (= & — — F :
5,220,0007870) AT & T — BB A &3k
RS 2 RS -

R-TE——F+-A=+-—8 WEE
& E 2 BT 371,838,000 IT 14 & 2
£ Iaﬁﬁﬁm%ﬁﬁmoﬁéﬁﬁ
ERBE-_T——-F+-A=+—AH1
FEH

o i

o

39. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
transferred property, plant and equipment of HK$47,502,000 (201 I: nil)
to the subsidiary as capital contribution in the subsidiary.

As at 31 December 2012, an amount of HK$6,341,000 (201 I:
HK$11,739,000) for the construction and acquisition of fixed assets was

outstanding and included in other payables.

Payable of HK$3,996,000 (201 I: HK$5,220,000) represented dividend

declared to non-controlling interests of a subsidiary.

As at 3| December 201 I, payables of HK$71,838,000 for the acquisition
of intangible asset had not been paid and had been included in other

payables. The amount was settled during the year ended 31 December
2012.
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40. HAGIR 40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
2012 2011
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$000
X T —RIBEE R A 2 |RITERE Guarantee given to a bank, in respect of
[RERITHE L R a banking facility granted to an associate
- EREHE — amount guaranteed 24,665 —
- PAEE — amount utilised 24,665 —
ART—F=JFZRITRE Guarantee given to a bank, in respect of
[RRITVE L R a banking facility granted to a third party
- EREHE — amount guaranteed 22,573 —
- BAEHE — amount utilised — —
Exgh EEIATELFREK o In the opinion of the Directors, the fair values of the guarantee are not
significant.

160 TEMABREM(KE) FRAF
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4]. TEMEAT + B AS]R  41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

H ﬁ?ﬁﬁ“%ﬁ%’éﬂ SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES
R-ZE—-—FERKR-_F——%F+=-H8 Details of the principal subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
S t+—HZAEETERBLAR - L entities of the Company at 3| December 2012 and 201 | are as follows:
DA RAREHERERMT :
ERTEBREZ
HiE/ ZRRE RAgRZADL
Nominal value of EARRES KEEEE%
issued ordinary Percentage of equity
kL share capital/ held by attributable ~ ETEXH
Name of company registered capital the Company to the Group  Principal activities
2012 2011 2012 2011
% % % %
WEAE
Subsidiaries
HEEEMA L RAEE
Incorporated and operating
in Hong Kong:
PEMAMKERERAT 1000078 7C 100 100 - — DHERFES
China Aerospace Telecommunications Limited  HK$10,000 Distribution of broadband
business
MAEEARARA 10000 7T - — 100 100 AHEEER
(RIBMAREREESERAR) HK$10,000 Distribution of broadband
CASTEL Hong Kong Limited business
(formerly China Aerospace
Telecommunications (Hong Kong) Limited)
ABEXBERAR] BT 100 100 - — DEAREER
Tin Shun Industrial Limited HK$2 Distribution of elevator
products
NARRBRAT] BT 100 100 - — BEER
New Image Development Limited HKSI Investment holding
MBERAR AR AT 100 100 - — BEER
Crownpluss Interational Limited HKS$! Investment holding
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

41. TERBAT  BEATR

tEEHEREE o

NAER

Name of company

WEAE (&)
Subsidiaries (Continued)

EHEFMREE -

Registered and operating in the PRC:
ERBRIZARAF

Beijing Energine Industry Co,, Ltd.**

THMAE R L ERARR A
Jiangsu Aerospace Wanyuan
REPM Motor Co,, Ltd.*

MAER (XZ) BHEEERAF
Aerospace Long Yuan (Benxi)
Wind Power Co, Ltd*

FEEEEE (R ARAT

NREMABRIERREERA A
Inner Mongolia Energine New

Energy Development Co. Ltd*

TEMXBRER(EE) BARAF

162 2012 &£ #f

41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES (Continued)

ERTEEREZ
HiE/ ERRA
Nominal value of
issued ordinary
share capital/
registered capital

AERE118251,1007T
RMBI18,251,100

AE#50,000,0007T
RMBS50,000,000

AE#93800,0007T
RMB93,800,000

20,000,000/ 7T
HK$20,000,000

AR E80,000,0007T
RMB80,000,000

N E APl
ROEERY FEEEE%
Percentage of equity
held by attributable
the Company to the Group
2012 2011 2012 2011
% % % %
- = 100 100
- = 52 52
- = 55 55
- = 100 100
- = 100 100

TERHK

Principal activities

REZRE S R
Investment holding and
distribution of wind turbine

generators

HERDEARKER
Manufacture and distribution

of elevator products

mEEE

Operation of wind farm

Distribution of broadband

business

BUER 7 SR
Manufacture and distribution

of wind turbine generators
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R F A+ AIER
41. TEMBAT » Hﬁﬁfg”"&ﬂ& 41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
HEEHEERSHE o) SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES (Continued)

ERTERRAZ
HiE/ R RAgREz B
Nominal value of KAAEE% KEEEL%
issued ordinary Percentage of equity
ACER: share capital/ held by attributable ~ ETEXH
Name of company registered capital the Company to the Group  Principal activities
2012 2011 2012 2011
% % % %
WEAR (8)
Subsidiaries (Continued)
EHEFREE - ()
Registered and operating in the PRC:
(Continued)
AEREMABRRERERERRDAY  AKES00000007T - — 95 % RERDHEEREK
Inner Mongolia CASC Energine Wind RMB50,000,000 25
Turbine Manufacture Co. Ltd* Manufacture and distribution
of wind turbine generators
and blades
RREMASRE LM HERAR" AEH80,0000007T - — 564l 564l BERDEREER
Inner Mongolia CASC Energine RMB80,000,000 Manufacture and distribution
Composite Materials Co. Ltd* of wind blades
RAMBBEETRM (R BRAF ARE300000007T - — 100 100 BERSHEAEM
RMB30,000,000 Manufacture and distribution
of telecommunication
products
IERASRERERAT AT ARE100000007C 65 65 - —  DHEKER
Beijing CASC Energine Wind Turbine Co. Ltd*  RMBI10,000,000 Distnibution of wind
turbine products
HEMASRRERERERRAA"  ARME0000,0007 - — 100 100 BERHHEE
RMB80,000,000 Manufacture and distribution
of wind turbine generators
FMMARRRERTBRAR] AR 1300000007 - — 4128 5385 HERNHEMER
Suzhou Aerospace TITP Wind RMB 30,000,000 Manufacture and distribution
Power Technology Co,, Ltd. of wind turbine products
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4]. I%Bﬁ%é}ﬁl . ngﬁ%/;}ﬁl& 4]. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
%ﬁ};”éfﬁl}%ﬁ%éﬂ () SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES (Continued)

ERTERRAZ
HiE/ ERRA N E APl
Nominal value of KNS TEEEE%
issued ordinary Percentage of equity
ACER share capital/ held by attributable FTEEH
Name of company registered capital the Company to the Group  Principal activities
2012 2001 2012 2011
% % % %
BEDR
Associates
RAEEFHAYRAEE
Registered and operating in the PRC:
IEERENEERRAR ARH3333200007C - — 25 5 EHEE
RMB333,320,000 Operation of wind farm
TERENRERRAR AR#438,2000007C - — 1535 153 [E5EE
RMB438,200,000 Operation of wind farm
ARSI AR AR AR ARBIS0000000  — — 20 0 EREE
RMB150,000,000 Operation of wind farm
EAMABRMANBRERA R’ AR¥120000000 - — 4167 4167 BHERDHEEK
Wuxi CASC Energine Xindall RMB120,000,000 Manufacture and distribution
Electricity Co,, Ltd* of wind turbine generators
ENRRERENEERRAR] ARH171,0700007C - — 4878 40 RE5EZ
Gaizhou Energine Wind Power Co,, Ltd. RMBI71,070,000 Operation of wind farm
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41. TERBAT « BEATR
HEEHEEEE 2

NRER

Name of company

HEZHER
Jointly controlled entities
RAEEFHAYRAEE
Registered and operating in the PRC:
IR ERREREDREEZRARAA)!
Beijing Delphi Wan Yuan Engine

Management Systems Co, Ltd

IRERBE ERHERARAR
Beijing Wanyuan - Henniges Sealing
Systems Co,, Ltd*

IHMABREERERERRAR
Jiangsu CASC Energine Wind Turbine
Manufacture Co, Ltd*

ARAAEERMERERAR

# RABEMZFIIEESERE -
o RABERZ2IIELE -

W ORZFE-ZFtZA=t—B 4K
EERYCZAXAAEZENEE
FTEREEF - At AAREFER
REAKEHZAAREEATEN
BHDAAGRAEEER 15% 2 B

A= HAUFE
For the year ended 3| December 2012

41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES (Continued)

ERTEBEREZ
HiE/ ZRRA
Nominal value of
issued ordinary
share capital/
registered capital

16,000,003 7T
US$ 16,000,000

RAgREz B
ROAFERY AEEEH%
Percentage of equity
held by attributable ~ FEEHK
the Company to the Group  Principal activities

2012 2011 2012 2011
% % % %

- — 49 49 BEABEHREERN
Manufacture of automotive
engine management

systems and components

AEH100000,0007T - — 40 40 BEBEFERHEZR

RMB 100,000,000

Manufacture of automotive

sealing products

AE100,000,0007T - — 50 50 BEEE

RMB100,000,000

AER92,6100007T
RMB92,610,000

##

#Hi#

Manufacture of wind turbine

- — 49 49 RBFEE
Operation of wind farm

Sino-foreign joint entity enterprise registered in the PRC.
Wholly foreign-owned enterprises registered in the PRC.

The Group is entitled to appoint up to and has appointed two out
of nine directors to the board of directors of this company as at 31
December 2012. Hence, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Group has significant influence over the company. Accordingly, the

company is accounted for as a 5% owned associate of the Group.
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BE—F——F1-A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

|. EXMEBAE  BEATR

tEEHEREE o

BRREABEKLZ ARSI AEERE L
ARBBD BRI RHFABEITCE
R -

EERB LISKRAEZARAIMNE
AE - BERRARAREHER DY
EXGEXELEEZERARAIAA
RARECEEFECERED - ES
RBA - D EAMH B AR REE QR
B BLAEBRIUE

BEREHR  WELAMERTER

BHES

FEMRERER(KE) BRAF
2012 £ 3F

41.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES (Continued)

Except for the companies established in the PRC, the classes of shares
held by the Group in the above companies are ordinary shares issued

by those companies.

The above table lists the subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results or assets or form a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries and
associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the

reporting period.
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42. ARFABMBERARZE
#

EUARERAFAARBRAK2E
K

B E—CF A= HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 20/2

42. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

the end of the reporting period includes:

2012 2011
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
EEEE Fixed assets 112 157
NG A Interests in subsidiaries 1,387,319 1,298,319
HoAth FEU R Other receivables 1,470 986
FEUTHT B A R IR Amount due from subsidiaries 221,050 235,160
R ES =N O Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries 7,606 —
At EemEE Available-for-sale financial asset 34,560 —
Be RRITER Cash and bank balances 21,443 52,455
BEBE Total assets 1,673,560 | 587,077
Hoth & T 5K Other payables 8,300 8,080
BfEES Total liabilities 8,300 8,080
BESE Net assets 1,665,260 1,578,997
BEAKf#E Capital and reserves
&N Share capital 396,900 396,900
A (BT 43) Reserves (Note 43) 1,268,360 [,182,097
Equity attributable to owners
ARARER AEGER of the Company 1,665,260 1,578,997
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BE—F——F1-A=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

43. XAEf#E

43. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

13
EftRE
R RE Ll Asset REER
Share Special  revaluation Retained #m
premium reserve reserve losses Total
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
RZZ——% At January 2011

—A—H 2,483,141 117,554 = (1,022,126) 1,578,569
REEEF Profit for the year — — — 428 428
TEEEE Total comprehensive

LON:t: income for the year — — — 428 428
RZZ——%F  At3| December 20!

+-A=+—"H 2,483,141 [17,554 = (1,021,698) 1,578,997
A HESREE Change in fair value of available-

ATHER for-sale financial asset — — (4623) — (4623)
REFHT Profit for the year — - - 90,886 90,886
TEEEE Total comprehensive

X (RA) (expense) income

k) for the year = = (4,623) 90,886 86,263
R=Z—=F  At3l December 2012

+-A=+—"H 2,483,141 117,554 (4,623) (930,812) 1,665,260

168 TEMABREM(KE) FRAF
2012 £ 3F



DFHHERREE
FIVE YEARS’ FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BEt-A=1—-HILEE

Year ended 3|1 December
2008 2009 2010 201 | 2012
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$’000

BER Turnover 184,206 663,373 698,083 406,285 989,885
B& 7% A Profit before taxation (488,507) 77892 122212 13,223 13,354
HIEXH Taxation charge (7421) (7,091) (20,128) (11,318) (7,933)
REERF Profit for the year (495,928) 70,801 102,084 1,905 5,421
R+=A=+—H
At 31 December
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

T T FIET FET FET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000  HK$'000

BERAK ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

BENT Total assets 2165730 3129179 3109991 3851458 4,561,601
aEEE Total liabiltes (889.818)  (1484381)  (1.350824)  (1967067) (2,580,408)
BEEM Net assets 1275912 1644798 1759167 1884391 1,981,193
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From Engine to/New,Energy,

CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
FEMRXBRER(ER)AERAA

Tel 5 : (852) 2586 1185
Fax & : (852) 2531 0088
Email £ : energine@energine.hk

Website #3t : http://www.energine.hk

Suite 4701, 47th Floor, Central Plaza,
18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
BREBEE18EPIRER4TIE4T01E
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